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PART |
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act Safe Harba Statement

Certain statements included herein and in othesrte@nd public filings made by the Company arevésd-looking within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%1eBe forward-looking statements include, withamitttion, statements regarding the
adoption by businesses of new technology solutithesuse by businesses of outsourced solutionb, asithose offered by the Company, in
connection with such adoption; the outcome ofditign (at both the trial and appellate levels) imirg the Company; and the impact on the
Company of its exchange offer relating to its carisling stock options. Readers are cautioned tleat fenward-looking statements, as well as
others made by the Company, which may be identied/ords such as "may," "will," "expect,” "antiaife," "continue," "estimate," "projec
"intend," and similar expressions, are only praditt and are subject to risks and uncertaintiescitiald cause the Company's actual results
and financial position to differ materially. Sudbks and uncertainties include, without limitatigi):unemployment and general economic
conditions affecting the provision of informaticechnology and engineering services and solutiodstaplacement of temporary staffing
personnel; (ii) the Company's ability to continoeattract, train and retain personnel qualifiedhiet the requirements of its clients; (iii) the
Company's ability to identify appropriate acqudaiticandidates, complete such acquisitions and ssftdly integrate acquired businesses;
uncertainties regarding pro forma financial infotima and the underlying assumptions relating taugitions and acquired businesses; (V)
uncertainties regarding amounts of deferred conaitia and earnout payments to become payableateefoshareholders of acquired
businesses; (vi) possible adverse effects on thikahprice of the Company's common stock due tadBale into the market of significant
amounts of common stock; (vii) the potential adeexHect a decrease in the trading price of the @om's common stock would have upon
the Company's ability to acquire businesses thrahglissuance of its securities; (viii) the Comparmapility to obtain financing on
satisfactory terms; (ix) the reliance of the Compapon the continued service of its executive effs; (x) the Company's ability to remain
competitive in the markets that it serves; (xi) @G@mpany's ability to maintain its unemploymenurasce premiums and workers
compensation premiums; (xii) the risk of claimsrigemade against the Company associated with prayigimporary staffing services; (xiii)
the Company's ability to manage significant amowhiaformation, and periodically expand and upgriétd information processing
capabilities; (xiv) the Company's ability to rema@incompliance with federal and state wage and kows and regulations; (xv) uncertainties
in predictions as to the future need for the Comgfsaservices; (xvi) uncertainties relating to thlecation of costs and expenses to each of the
Company's operating segments; (xvii) the costoaflacting and the outcome of litigation involvirigetCompany, and (xviii) other econon
competitive and governmental factors affecting@oenpany's operations, markets, products and sernvReaders are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statemevtisch speak only as of the date made. The Compadgrtakes no obligation to publicly
release the results of any revision of these faiWlaoking statements to reflect these trends @uanstances after the date they are made or tc
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.



ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

RCM Technologies Inc. (RCM or the Company) is awgeg provider of business and technology solutidesigned to enhance and maximize
the operational performance of its customers thnadhg adaptation and deployment of advanced infoomaechnology and engineering
services. RCM has been an innovative leader imésggn, development and delivery of these senticesmmercial and government sectors
for more than 30 years. The Company provides arsified and extensive range of service offeringd daliverables. Its portfolio of
Information Technology services includes e-BusinEsgerprise Management and Enterprise Applicatidegration. RCM's portfolio of
Professional Engineering services focuses on Ergimg Design, Technical Support and Project Managgrand Implementation. The
Company's Commercial Services business unit previtEalthcare contract professionals as well asd@lesnd Light Industrial temporary
personnel. The Company provides its services &ntdiin a variety of industries including bankimgldinance, aerospace, healthcare,
pharmaceutical, utility, technology, manufacturidgstribution and government sectors. The Compaatigtes it offers a range of services
that fosters long-term client relationships, affoodoss-selling opportunities and minimizes the Gany's dependence on any single
technology or industry sector. RCM sells and detivits services through a network of 35 branchceffilocated in selected regions throug
North America.

During the year ended January 1, 2005, approxima#l% of RCM's total revenues were derived frdnsérvices, 30.2% from Engineering
services and the remaining 14.9% from Commercialices. The Company has executed a regional syratelgetter leverage its consulting
services offerings.

Demand for the Company's IT consulting servicesrbamined soft since early 2001 after several yefarapid growth. A decline in revenu
and operating income of certain branch officesltedun goodwill impairment charges for the fisgahrs ended January 1, 2005 and
December 28, 2002. This demand for the Compangicss is significantly impacted by changes in geaeral level of economic activity,
particularly any negative effect on technology speg. During periods of reduced economic activiig Company may also be subject to
increased competition and pricing pressure. Asaltiecontinued periods of reduced economic agtiituld have a material adverse impact
on our business and results of operations.

Industry Overview

Businesses today face intense competition, thdestgd of constant technological change, and theiaggeed for business process
optimization. Companies are turning to IT solutitmsiddress these issues and to compete moreiedfgciAs a result, the ability of an
organization to integrate and align informatiorhtealogies with new business objectives has becaitieat.

Although many companies have recognized the impoetaf optimizing IT systems and products to supbosiness processes in order to
compete in today's challenging environment, the@se of designing, developing and implementingdlit®ons has become increasingly
complex. As a result, many companies have electeléfer, redefine or cancel investments in newesyst software and solutions, and are
focused on making more effective use of previoahrelogical investments. The Company's client§ared with some of these same
decisions. This is resulting in greater uncertaany cautiousness in pursuing new technology prjadich had previously been considered
a competitive imperative. Consequently, many clidretve trimmed or redeployed their permanent wockfathereby reducing the demand
consulting services. This has had a direct negatipact on the Company's revenues and earnings.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Industry Overview (Continued)

The current economic environment has further chgiel many companies to evaluate investment or fignchoices and business critical
applications. IT managers must integrate and maocagguting environments consisting of multiple cantipg platforms, operating systems,
databases and networking protocols and off-thefsbhétiware applications to support business objestiCompanies also need to keep pace
with new developments in technology, which oftemder existing equipment and internal skills obsnlétt the same time, external economic
factors have caused many organizations to focuomcompetencies and trim workforces in the IT aggment area. Accordingly, these
organizations often lack the quantity, quality amagiety of IT skills necessary to design and suppbsolutions. IT managers are charged
with supporting increasingly complex systems angliegtions of significant strategic value, while skking under budgetary, personnel and
expertise constraints within their own organizasion

The Company believes the strongest demand formicess is among middle-market companies, whichdsdby lack the time and technical
resources to satisfy all of their IT needs intdgnalhese companies typically require sophisticagegberienced IT assistance to achieve their
business objectives and often rely on IT serviewiplers to help implement and manage their systétosiever, many middle-market
companies rely on multiple providers for their I&enls. Generally, the Company believes that thigneg on multiple providers results from
the fact that larger IT service providers do nogeéathese companies, while smaller IT service iplerg lack sufficient breadth of services or
industry knowledge to satisfy all of these companieeds. The Company believes this reliance otiptauservice providers creates multiple
relationships that are more difficult and less @fftctive to manage than a single relationshipldidne and can adversely impact the quality
and compatibility of IT solutions. RCM is structdrto provide middle-market companies an objectiggle source for their IT needs.

Business Strategy

RCM is dedicated to providing solutions to meetlisnts' business needs by delivering informateshnology and professional engineering
services. The Company's objective is to be a rezedrieader of specialty professional consultinyises and solutions in major markets
throughout North America. The Company has develagettating strategies to achieve this objective; &ements of its growth and
operating strategies are as follows:

Growth Strategy

Full Life Cycle Solution. The Company is building-all Life Cycle Solution capability. The goal dfd full life cycle strategy is to fully
address a client's project implementation cyclesah stage of its development. This entails the 2oy working with its clients from the
initial conceptualization of a project throughdissign and project execution, and extending ingorg management and support of the
delivered product. RCM's strategy is to selectivmijld projects and solutions offerings which a#liits extensive resource base. The
Company believes that the effective execution f $krategy will generate improved margins on tkisteng resources. The completion of t
service-offering continuum will afford the Compatig opportunity to strengthen long-term client tielaships that will further contribute to
the quality of earnings.

In addition to building a Full Life Cycle Solutiaffering, the Company will continue to focus oms#ioning into higher value oriented
services to increase its margins on its variougicetines. The Company will seek to accompliststhmeasures through expansion of its
client relationships while at the same time purgusitrategic alliances and partnerships.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Growth Strategy (Continued)

Promote Internal Growth. The Company continues/tive its internal growth strategies. Its growttastgy is designed to better serve the
Company's customers, generate higher revenuescaiela greater operating efficiencies. National eeglonal sales management programs
were designed and implemented to segregate cligotpriority accounts. This process is improvirmg@unt coordination so clients can
benefit from the wider array of services offeretbtighout the Company's service area.

RCM is continuing a company-wide training initiaiin which sales managers and professionals reaéiw@nced sales training. The purpose
of the training, which is a multi-semester progrésrtp enhance sales skills and to further adséssales force in identifying, developing and
closing solution sales.

RCM has adopted an industry-centric approach &ssahd marketing. This initiative recognizes thiaints within the same industry sectors
tend to have common business challenges. It thereftows the Company to present and deliver erddhmalue to those clients in the
industrial sectors in which RCM has assembled thatgst work experience. RCM's consultants contio@Equire project experience that
offers differentiated awareness of the businesBertges that clients in that industry are facingisTalignment also facilitates and creates
additional cross-selling opportunities. The Compbaljeves this strategy will lead to greater ac¢quemetration and enhanced client
relationships.

Operational strategies contributing to RCM's ingé¢productivity include the delineation of certaiew technical practice areas in markets
where its clients had historically known the Comypan a contract service provider. The formatiotheke practice areas will facilitate the
flow of project opportunities and the delivery abject-based solutions.

Continue Selective Strategic Acquisitions. The stdgin which the Company operates continues tbigpely fragmented, and the Company
plans to continue to selectively assess opporemit make strategic acquisitions as such oppdeearare presented to the Company. The
Company's past acquisition strategy was designbdoden the scope of services and technical camgpiess and grow its Full Life Cycle
Solution capabilities, and the Company would cardito consider such goals in any future acquisstibm considering acquisitions, the
Company focuses principally on companies withgghinologies RCM has targeted for strategic vallmecement, (i) margins that will not
dilute the margins now being delivered, (iii) expaced management personnel, (iv) substantial ¢grgndspects and (v) sellers who desire to
join the Company's management team. To retain emdde incentives for management of its acquirethjganies, the Company has gener
structured a significant portion of the acquisitfmite in the form of multi-tiered considerationskbd on growth of operating profitability of

the acquired company over a two to three-year gerio

Operating Strategy

Foster a Decentralized Entrepreneurial Environm&iikiey element of the Company's operating stratedy foster a decentralized,
entrepreneurial environment for its employees. Thepany fosters this environment by continuinguddion local market knowledge of
each branch's reputation, customer relationshigsapertise. The Company believes an entreprefdwsiness atmosphere allows its bra
offices to quickly and creatively respond to logarket demands and enhances the Company's abilitptivate, attract and retain managers
and to maximize growth and profitability.

Develop and Maintain Strong Customer Relationshipg Company seeks to develop and maintain stimegactive customer relationships
by anticipating and focusing on its customers' seg@tie Company emphasizes a relationship-orieqiprbach to business, rather than the
transaction or assignment-oriented approach tiea€Ctdhmpany believes is used by many of its compstifthis industry-centric strategy is
designed to allow RCM to further expand its relasioips with clients in RCM's targeted sectors.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Operating Strategy (Continued)

To develop close customer relationships, the Coylpaomactice managers regularly meet with bothtexjsand prospective clients to help
design solutions and identify the resources negéalesecute their strategies. The Company's manafgsnaintain close communications
with their customers during each project and ooragoing basis after its completion. The Companieliek that this relationship-oriented
approach can result in greater customer satisfaeta business development expense reduction.idddity, the Company believes that by
partnering with its customers in designing busirsgmdstions, it can generate new opportunities ¢ssssell additional services that the
Company has to offer. The Company focuses on piyidustomers with qualified individuals or teanfiggrperts compatible with the
business needs of our customers and makes a ceshefrt to follow the progress of such relatidpstto ensure their continued success.

Attract and Retain Highly Qualified Consultants drethnical Resources. The Company believes it bas buccessful in attracting and
retaining qualified consultants and contractorgipproviding stimulating and challenging work agsinents, (ii) offering competitive wages,
(iii) effectively communicating with its candidate®s) providing training to maintain and upgradeélls and (v) aligning the needs of its
customers with the appropriately skilled personfibe Company believes it has been successfulamiat these personnel due in part to its
use of practice managers or "ombudsmen" who areated to maintaining contact with, and monitorihg satisfaction levels of, the
Company's consultants while they are on assignment.

Centralize Administrative Functions. The Compangtgwes to improve its operational efficienciesifiggrating general and administrative
functions at the corporate or regional level, adlicing or eliminating redundant functions formexgrformed at smaller branch offices. This
enables the Company to quickly realize savingssynérgies and to efficiently control and monitgraperations. It also allows local branc

to focus more on growing their sales.

To accomplish this, the Company's financial repgrtind accounting systems are centralized on andpa&Rating system into which it has
integrated all of its operating units. During 20€# Company upgraded the SAP operating systemARORS3 version 4.7. The software has
been configured to allow the performance of allkdaitice functions, including payroll, project mayement, project cost accounting, billing,
human resource administration and all financiabrépg and consolidation. The Company believes tiiatsystem provides a robust and
highly scalable platform from which to manage dajperations, and has the capacity to accommodeatteased usage.

Information Technology

The Company's Information Technology Group offe@sponsive, timely and comprehensive business dodriation technology consulting
and solutions to support the entire systems agmitadevelopment and implementation process. Tdragany's information technology
professionals have expertise in a variety of tezdirdisciplines, including e-business developmapplication integration, network
communications, knowledge management and suppattenit applications.

The Company has a wide array of service offerimgbdeliverables within this spectrum. Within itbesiness offering, RCM delivers web
strategies, web enablement of client applicatiersgmmerce solutions, Intranet solutions, corporattats and complete web sites. Within
business intelligence practice, RCM provides dathitecture design, data warehousing, knowledgeagament, customer relationship
management and supply chain management solutioiits. énterprise applications area, RCM delivefsasoe products applications,
implementation services, infrastructure suppotegration services, and an array of post-implentgmaupport services. In its enterprise
application integration work, the Company integsad@erse but related enterprise applications umified cohesive operating environments.
The Company believes that its ability to delivefoimation technology solutions across a wide rasfgechnical platforms provides an
important competitive advantage.



ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Information Technology (Continued)

The Company also ensures that its consultants thavexpertise and skills needed to keep pace wajtlly evolving information
technologies. The Company's strategy is to mairggpertise and acquire knowledge in multiple tedbgies so it can offer its clients non-
biased solutions best suited to their businessseed

The Company provides its IT services through a remalh delivery methods. These include managemamudting engagements, project
management of client efforts, project implementatid client initiatives, outsourcing, both on arfigite, and a full complement of resourc
alternatives.

As of January 1, 2005, the Company had assigne=ippately 710 information technology employees andsultants to its customers.
Professional Engineering

The Company's Professional Engineering Group pesvjzersonnel to perform project engineering, coempitied design, and other mana
task technical services either at the site of thetamer or, less frequently, at the Company's ailifies. Representative services include
utilities process and control, electrical enginegrilesign, system engineering design and anatysishanical engineering design,
procurement engineering, civil structural enginegidesign, computer aided design and code complidite Professional Engineering Gr
has developed an expertise in providing enginegdagign and technical services to many custometsei aeronautical, paper products
manufacturing and nuclear power, fossil fuel aretteic utilities industries.

The Company believes that the deregulation of thigéies industry and the aging of nuclear poweaarpk offer the Company an opportunity to
capture a greater share of professional staffimgpaoject management requirements of the utilitidsistry both in professional engineering
services and through cross-selling of its informratiechnology services. Heightened competitionegigiation and rapid technological
advances are forcing the utilities industry to makelamental changes in its business process. Titessures have compelled the utilities
industry to focus on internal operations and maiatee activities and to increasingly outsourcer fpeisonnel requirements. Additionally,
Company believes that competitive performance deiménom deregulation should increase the importafigeformation technology to this
industry. The Company believes that its expertigksirong relationships with certain customers ivithe utilities industry position the
Company to be a leading provider of professionalises to the utilities industry.

The Company provides its engineering services tiit@anumber of delivery methods. These include measasks and resources, complete
project services, outsourcing, both on and off;sited a full complement of resourcing alternatives.

As of January 1, 2005, the Company had assignexippately 460 engineering and technical employeebconsultants to its customers.
Commercial Services
The Company's Commercial Services Group consisBpetialty Health Care and General Support Services

The Company's Specialty Health Care Group speemliz long-term and short-term staffing as wekxascutive search and placement for the
following fields: Rehabilitation (physical therafgsoccupational therapists and speech languagelpgtsts), Nursing, Managed Care, Allied
Health Care, Health Care Management and Medicat®©8upport. The Specialty Health Care Group presiskrvices to hospitals, long-term
care facilities, schools, sports medicine fac#itéand private practices. Services include in-patmutpatient, sub-acute and acute care,
multilingual speech pathology, rehabilitation, ajetiatric, pediatric and adult day care. Typicajagements either range from three to six
months or are on a day-to-day shift basis.



ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Commercial Services (Continued)

The Company's General Support Services Group peewidntract and temporary services, as well asgrernt placement services, for full-
time and part-time personnel in a variety of fuoistil areas, including office, clerical, data enssgretarial, light industrial, shipping and
receiving and general warehouse. Contract and teanpassignments range in length from less thandaydo several weeks or months.

As of January 1, 2005, the Company had assigne=zippately 980 commercial services personnel tautstomers.
Branch Offices

The Company's organization consists of six opegatigions with 35 branch offices located in 13estatnd territories in the United States,
and in Canada. The regions and services providezhbly of the branch offices are set forth in tiédetéelow.

NUMBER OF SERVICES
REGION OFFICES PROVIDED(1)
EAST
Connecticut 2 PE
Maryland 1 IT,CS
Massachusetts 1 IT
New Jersey 2 IT, PE
New York 3 IT, PE, CS
Pennsylvania 1 IT,CS
10
GREAT LAKES
Michigan 5 IT, PE
Minnesota 1 IT
Missouri 1 IT
Wisconsin 3 IT, PE
10
CENTRAL
Texas 2 IT
2
WEST
Northern California 1 IT
Southern California 6 IT,CS
7
PUERTO RICO 1 IT
CANADA 5 IT, PE

(1) Services provided are abbreviated as folloWws: Information Technology PE - Professional Engimieg CS - Commercial Services
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Branch Offices (Continued)

Branch offices are primarily located in regionstitiee Company believes have strong growth prosgecisformation technology and
engineering services. The Company's branches amateg in a decentralized, entrepreneurial manitermost branch offices operating as
independent profit centers. The Company's branatagers are given significant autonomy in the daggrations of their respective offices
and, with respect to such offices, are responséisleverall guidance and supervision, budgeting fanelcasting, sales and marketing
strategies, pricing, hiring and training. Branchnagers are paid on a performance-based compensgitem designed to motivate the
managers to maximize growth and profitability.

The Company believes that substantial portiond@tiuying decisions made by users of the Compaeysces are made on a local or
regional basis and that the Company's branch sfficest often compete with local and regional preksd Since the Company's branch
managers are in the best position to understanditival markets, and customers often prefer Ipecaliders, the Company believes that a
decentralized operating environment enhances apgna¢rformance and contributes to employee antbmey satisfaction.

From its headquarter locations in New Jersey, ti@@any provides its branch offices with centraliagdninistrative, marketing, finance,
MIS, human resources and legal support. Centrabzadinistrative functions minimize the administvatburdens on branch office managers
and allow them to spend more time focusing on sabesmarketing and practice development activities.

Our principal sales offices have one General Manages sales manager, three to six sales peopleratéechnical delivery or practice
managers and several recruiters. The General Meseggort to Regional Managers who are respon8iblensuring that performance goals
are achieved. The Company's branch managers negeiefntly to discuss "best practices" and waysdease the Company's cross selling of
its professional services. The Company's practiaeagers meet periodically to strategize, maintaitinuity, and identify developmental
needs and cross-selling opportunities.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing efforts are conducted at tted bnd regional level through the Company's netwbibranch offices. The Company
emphasizes long-term personal relationships wigtazners that are developed through regular assessfheustomer requirements and
proactive monitoring of personnel performance. Toenpany's sales personnel make regular visitsistieg and prospective customers. M
customers are obtained through active sales pragaaut referrals. The Company encourages its emgddygeparticipate in national and
regional trade associations, local chambers of ceroenand other civic associations. The Companyssieettevelop strategic partnering
relationships with its customers by providing coetmnsive solutions for all aspects of a custom@dsmation technology, engineering and
other professional services needs. The Companyeotrates on providing carefully screened profesdmowith the appropriate skills in a
timely manner and at competitive prices. The Corgpagularly monitors the quality of the services\gded by its personnel and obtains
feedback from its customers as to their satisfaatitth the services provided.

The Company has elevated the importance of wonkiitly and developing its partner alliances with tealogy firms. Partner programs are in
place with firms RCM has identified as strategigathportant to the completeness of the servicerimifeof the Company. Relations have b
established with firms such as Microsoft, QAD, Merg IBM, and Oracle among others. The partner @ may be managed either at a
national level from RCM's corporate offices or aegional level from its branch offices.

The Company's larger representative customersdacd, ADP, Ameriquest, Bristol Myers Squibb, Brikewer L.P, Entergy, FlightSafety
International, IBM, MSC Industrial Supply, Ontaffmwer Generation, Schering Plough, United TechniesdJ.S. Treasury and Wells Far
The Company serves Fortune 1000 companies and maiaye market clients. The Company's relationskifib these customers are
typically formed at the local or regional level mhen appropriate, at the corporate level for mati@ccounts.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Sales and Marketing (Continued)

During 2004, the Company's largest customer aceaolfior 7.4% of the Company's revenues. The Comgpding' and ten largest customers
accounted for approximately 25.4% and 36.9%, raspdg, of the Company's revenues for 2004.

Recruiting and Training

The Company devotes a significant amount of tingkr@sources, primarily at the branch level, to fimgg training and retaining its
professional personnel. Full-time recruiters utilthe Company's proprietary databases of avaifaeonnel, which are cross-indexed by
competency and skill to match potential candidatiéls the specific project requirements of the casto. The qualified personnel in the
databases are identified through numerous acsyitieluding networking, referrals, trade shows, fairs, schools, newspapers and trade
journal advertising, Internet recruiting servicesl adhe Company's websit

The Company believes that a significant elemethiéoCompany's success in retaining qualified caastd and contract personnel is the
Company's use of Consultant Relationship Managatdechnical practice managers. Consultant RelshiprManagers are qualified
Company personnel dedicated to maintaining onesitgéact with, and monitoring the satisfaction lsvef, the Company's consultants and
contract personnel while they are on assignmeattiee managers are consulting managers respoffigititee technical development and
career development of the Company's technical paedavithin the defined practice areas. The Companploys various methods of
technical training and skills development includsending consultants to application vendor proviceagses, the use of computer-based
training tools and on-the-job training through nueintg programs.

Information Systems

The Company has invested, and is continuing tosihwe its current SAP R/3 ERP installation. Duri@p4, the Company upgraded the SAP
R/3 system to version 4.7. The system is housealronlti redundant Dell PowerEdge 6600 server harewihe SAP installation resides o
Windows 2003 enterprise server operating system thié database engine being Microsoft SQL 2000 A3EBterprise edition. The branch
offices of the Company are networked to the corgooffices via AT&T managed VPN so the SAP applarais accessed securely at all
operational locations. This system supports Comyeidg operations such as payroll, billing, humasorgces, project systems, accounts
receivable, accounts payable, all general ledgesating and consolidation reporting functionality.

In addition to SAP, the Company maintains a unifiest end system. This system consists of two el#s1 the PCR system and the
Microsoft CRM system. The PCR system manages thdidates information in a skills based databasekwoder flows, and recruiting
reporting on a national basis. The PCR applicatidroused on a Dell PowerEdge 1750 with a RAIDsk donfiguration. The database in
which the PCR information is stored is MicrosoftISED00 (SP 3A). The web based system, provided binNsequence, Inc., is customized
to RCM's business requirements and is hosted anttaireed at the Company's data center. Each afeéhdce groups maintains databases to
permit efficient tracking of available personnelafocal basis. This system facilitates efficiemttoming of customers' requirements with
available technical personnel.

The Microsoft CRM system manages the business &ategl, which includes customer contacts, singlesobjectives, contact management
functionality for the sales force, and sales rdpgron a national basis. The system is housedelldPowerEdge 1750 with a multi hardw:
redundant configuration. The OS is Windows 2003 theddatabase engine is Microsoft SQL 2000 (SP BA&. web based system, provided
by Microsoft, has minor customization and is hosted maintained at the Company's headquarters.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Information Systems (Continued)

The company is also reviewing proposals for a Tame Attendance system, which will augment the SgBlieation by catering to the needs
of its diverse business offerings and distributexdlisfiorce. Anticipated rollout for this system ispected by mid 2005.

Other Information
Safeguards - Business, Disaster and Contingency Rhking

RCM has implemented a number of safeguards to girtite Company from various systeelated risks spanning from warm data center
to disaster recovery / business continuity proceslfor all satellite offices. In addition, the caany has implemented a multi-tiered approach
to disaster recovery services, and comprehenspicapon support frameworks for all business cétiapplications.

Given the significant amount of data generatethén@ompany's key processes including recruitingssaayroll and customer invoicing,
RCM has established redundant procedures, funotjoom a daily basis, within the Company's primaatactenter. This redundancy mitigates
the risks related to hardware application and bt by utilizing the concept of live differentiahckups of servers and desktops to network-
attached storage devices on its backup LAN, cultimigan offsite storage at an independent facil@pntrols within the data center
environment ensure that all systems are proactivelgitored and data is properly archived.

Additionally, RCM has contracted and brokered styat relationships with thirgarty vendors to meet its recovery objectives indient of :
system disruption. For example, comprehensive cefevel agreements provided by AT&T for RCM's ngewafirewall, VPN and data
circuits guarantees minimal outages as well as oritwcalability.

Finally, the Company maintains a comprehensivestisaecovery plan that outlines the recovery omgdion structure, roles and procedures,
including site addendum disaster plans for alt®key operating offices. Corporate IT personngutate the maintenance and integrity of
backed-up data throughout the Company.

Competition

The market for IT and engineering services inclualé&srge number of competitors, is subject to rapidnge and is highly competitive. As the
market demand has shifted, many software comp#aies adopted tactics to pursue services and camgofferings making them direct
competitors when in the past they may have beé@na# partners. Primary competitors include paoéints from a variety of market segme
including publicly and privately held firms, systemonsulting and implementation firms, applicatsoftware firms, service groups of
computer equipment companies, facilities manageiwampanies, general management consulting firmsstaffing companies. In addition,
the Company competes with its clients' internabueses, particularly where these resources represixed cost to the client. Such
competition may impose additional pricing pressuneshe Company.

The Company believes its principal competitive adages in the IT and professional engineering sesvinarket include: breadth of services
offered, technical expertise, knowledge and expegen the industry, quality of service, responsess to client needs and speed in delive
IT solutions.

Additionally, the Company competes for suitablewasition candidates based on its differentiatecuéition model, its entrepreneurial and
decentralized operating philosophy, its strong omafe-level support and resources.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Seasonality

The timing of certain holidays, weather conditiemsl seasonal vacation patterns can cause the Cgisipasults of operations to fluctuate.
The Company generally expects to realize highezmegs, operating income and net income duringebersl and third quarters and
relatively lower revenues, operating income andmeime during the first and fourth quarters.

Employees

As of January 1, 2005, the Company employed anradtrative staff of approximately 240 people, irthg certified IT specialists and
licensed professional engineers who, from timeénb@t participate in IT and engineering design mtgaindertaken by the Company. As of
January 1, 2005, there were approximately 710 inédion technology and 460 engineering and techeicgdloyees and consultants assigned
by the Company to work on client projects for vasg@eriods. As of January 1, 2005, there were appadely 980 commercial services
employees and consultants. None of the Company$ogees are represented by a collective bargamgmgement. The Company considers
its relationship with its employees to be good.

Risk Factors

The Company's business involves a number of rikse of which are beyond its control. The risk andertainties described below are not
the only ones the Company faces. Management bsliénat the most significant of these risks and tag#ies are as follows:

Economic Trends

The Company's growth and earnings prospects drueided by broad economic trends. The pace of mestoapital spending programs, n
product launches and similar activities have adfiimpact on the need for temporary and permamaptayees. The Company believes that
its fiscal discipline and strategic focus on taegetertical markets provides some insulation fralvease trends. However, further declines in
the economy would adversely affect the Companyésaimg performance and could result in the neefutore cost reductions or changes in
strategy.

Government Regulations

Changes in government regulations could resultamipition or restriction of certain types of empioent services or the imposition of new
or additional benefits, licensing or tax requiretsenith respect to the provision of employment gsw that may reduce RCM's future
earnings.

Highly Competitive Business

The staffing services and outsourcing markets gylel\hcompetitive and have limited barriers to gnfRCM competes in global, national,
regional and local markets with numerous tempostaiffing and permanent placement companies. Paggetition in the staffing industry is
significant and pricing pressures from competitord customers are increasing. In addition, theircigasing pressure on companies to
outsource certain areas of their business to l@avaffshore outsourcing firms. RCM expects thatldwel of competition will remain high in
the future, which could limit RCM's ability to ma&in or increase its market share or profitability.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Dependence Upon Personnel

The Company's operations depend on the continderdse6f its officers and other executive manageimi€ne loss of key officers and
members of executive management may cause a samiifilisruption to the Company's business. RCM @é¢gends on the performance and
productivity of its local managers and field penselh The Company's ability to attract and retaiw hesiness is significantly affected by lo
relationships and the quality of service rendefdgt loss of key managers and field personnel n&yjabpardize existing client relationships
with businesses that continue to use our serviassdupon past relationships with local managetdialul personnel, which could cause
future revenues to decline in that event.

Improper Activities of Our Temporary Profession@lsuld Result in Damage to Our Business Reputabistontinuation of Our Client
Relationships and Exposure to Liability

The Company may be subject to possible claims Ioyckents related to errors and omissions, mistiggaprietary information,

discrimination and harassment, theft and otheriodhactivity, malpractice, and other claims stemgnirom the improper activities or allec
activities of our temporary professionals. Thene ba no assurance that our current liability insaeacoverage will be adequate or will
continue to be available in sufficient amountsdwer damages or other costs associated with sagh< Claims raised by clients stemming
from the improper actions of our temporary profesals, even if without merit, could cause us tairgignificant expense associated with the
costs or damages related to such claims. Furthelh, daims by clients could damage our businesstatipn and result in the discontinuation
of client relationships.

Integration of Acquisitions

The Company reviews prospective acquisitions asl@ment of its growth strategy. The failure to ®sstully integrate any future acquisition
may divert management's attention from its coreatpmns or could negatively affect the Companyifitglio timely meet the needs of its
customers.

Goodwill Impairments May Have an Adverse Effectaur Results of Operations

The Company recorded a write down of $2.2 millior2004 related to impairment of goodwill. As of dary 1, 2005, we had $35.8 million
goodwill on our balance sheet, which represente8%6f our total assets. This amount primarily esgints the remaining excess of the total
purchase price of our acquisitions over the falngaf the net assets acquired. If we are requoddrther write down goodwill, the related
charge could materially reduce reported net inconresult in a net loss for the period in which write down occurs.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Changes in Exchage Rates

The Company is exposed to risks associated wigidgarcurrency fluctuations and changes in exchaatgs. RCM's exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations relates to operations in @anarincipally conducted through its Canadian slibsy. Exchange rate fluctuations affect
the U.S. dollar value of reported earnings derifreth the Canadian operations as well as the cagryaiue of our investment in the net as:
related to these operations. The Company doesngaige in hedging activities with respect to foreagerations.

Data Center Capacity and Telecommunication Links

The Company's ability to protect its data centgaresst damage from fire, power loss, telecommuinnatfailure and other disasters is
critical. In order to provide many of its servicBCM must be able to store, retrieve, process asbge large databases and periodically
expand and upgrade its capabilities. Any damaglee¢@Company's data centers or any failure of thmgamy's telecommunication links that
interrupts its operations or results in an inadu@rtoss of data could adversely affect RCM's ghib meet its customers' needs and their
confidence in utilizing RCM for future services.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
Access to Company Information

RCM Technologies, Inc. electronically files its amhreport on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on FAi9rQ, current reports on Form 8-K, and
all amendments to those reports with the SecustimsExchange Commission (SEC). The public may apadcopy any of the reports that
filed with the SEC at the SEC's Public ReferencerRat 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 205489e public may obtain information
on the operation of the Public Reference Room Hliingahe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintamfnternet site
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxie®rmation statements, and other informatiorarding issuers that file electronically.

RCM Technologies, Inc. makes available, free ofgeathrough its website or by responding to retsuaddressed to the Company's
Corporate Secretary, its annual reports on ForrK 1uarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reporis=orm 8-K, and all amendments to
those reports filed by the Company with the SEGpaint to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Seculiiehange Act, as amended. These
reports are available as soon as reasonably prhtgiafter such material is electronically filediwor furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Company's website is/futipw.rcmt.com. The information contained on then@any's website, or on other
websites linked to the Company's website, is ndtgfahis document. Reference herein to the Corygamebsite is an inactive text reference
only.

The Company is a Nevada corporation organized #1.1%he address of its principal executive offe@2500 McClellan Avenue, Suite 350,
Pennsauken, NJ 08109-4613.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company provides specialty professional comgplervices, principally performed at various lications, through 35 administrative
and sales offices in 13 states and territorieséndnited States, and in Canada. The Companytesftipically consist of 1,000 to 3,000
square feet and are leased by the Company for tefrorse to three years. Offices in larger or snmattarkets may vary in size from the

typical office. The Company does not expect thatilitbe difficult to maintain or find suitable lsa space at reasonable rates in its markets o
in areas where the Company contemplates expansion.

The Company's executive office is located at 25@TMIlan Avenue, Suite 350, Pennsauken, New J&8&§94613. These premises con
of approximately 9,100 square feet and are leasadate of $13.50 per square foot per annum ferra ending on January 31, 2006.

The Company's operational office is located at 2iefiew Boulevard, 4th Floor, Parsippany, NJ 070341. These premises consist of
approximately 28,000 square feet and are leasadate of $27.50 per square foot per annum forma émding on June 30, 2012.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In late 1998, two shareholders who were formerficefs and directors of the Company filed suit agathe Company alleging wrongful
termination of their employment, failure to makegug&ed severance payments, wrongful conduct byCihmapany in connection with the grant
of stock options, and wrongful conduct by the Comypeaesulting in the norestiture of their option grants. The complainbaddieged that th
Company wrongfully limited the number of sharesh&f Company's common stock that could have beehbsothe plaintiffs under a
Registration Rights Agreement entered into in catina with the underlying acquisition transactiamrguant to which the plaintiffs became
shareholders of the Company. The claim under thgsiRation Rights Agreement sought the differenetveen the amount for which
plaintiffs could have sold their RCM shares durihg 12-month period ended March 11, 1999, butHeralleged wrongful limitation on their
sales, and the amount for which the plaintiffs gbkeir shares during that period and thereafter.

The claim relating to the wrongful termination bétemployment of one of the plaintiffs and therogof both plaintiffs concerning the grant
of stock options were resolved in binding arbitratin early 2002. A trial on the remaining clainmsronenced on December 2, 2002 and a
verdict was returned on January 24, 2003. On thiensl by both plaintiffs, concerning the alleged mgful limitation by the Company of the
number of shares that the plaintiffs could selimgithe 12-month period ended March 11, 1999, digeawarding damages of $7.6 million
against the Company was returned. On June 23, 2003%;al judge denied the Company's post-triatioms that challenged the jury verdict
and upheld the verdict. On August 4, 2003, thé juidge entered a judgment in favor of the plafatfbr $7.6 million in damages and awar:
plaintiffs $172,000 in post-verdict pre-judgmerieirest. Post-judgment interest will continue toraemn the damages portion of the
judgment at the rate of 3% per annum in 2(

The Company has appealed to the Appellate Divisfdhe Superior Court of New Jersey from, and atetdia stay pending appeal of, that
judgment. In order to secure the stay, the Compaage a cash deposit in lieu of bond of $8.3 millith the Trust Fund of the Superi

Court of New Jersey. This deposit is recorded sisioted cash on the consolidated balance sheetamnd interest at a rate that approximates
the daily federal funds rate. The plaintiffs havess-appealed from the Court's denial of pre-vémliejudgment interest on the damages
portion of the August 4, 2003 judgment and from@wairt's refusal to grant judgment as a matteawftb one of the plaintiffs on his claim

for severance pay in the amount of $240,000 pliesést. The briefing phase of the appeal was cdedun April 2004 and oral argument v
heard on February 15, 2005. The timing of a rubnghe appeal cannot be predicted at this time.

In connection with this litigation, the Company aexd $9.7 million of litigation charges at DecemBgy 2002, which included the jury aw:
of $7.6 million, professional fees of $1.1 milliand an estimate of $1.0 million for attorney feed pre-judgment interest. As of January 1,
2005, the accrued litigation reserve was $8.2 amillin addition, in November 2002 the Company bhawyit in the Superior Court of New
Jersey on professional liability claims againstdtterneys and law firms who served as its couimsile above-described acquisition
transaction and in its subsequent dealings wittptaiatiffs concerning their various relationshipgh the Company resulting from that
transaction. In its lawsuit against the former s®inthe Company is seeking complete indemnificatlg of its costs and counsel fees
incurred in defending itself against the claimshaf plaintiffs; (2) any sums for which the Compasyultimately determined to be liable to the
plaintiffs; and (3) its costs and counsel fees irediin the prosecution of the legal malpracticgoadtself. That litigation has been
temporarily stayed in the Law Division at the resjusf the defendants until at least April 4, 200%ile/the appeal of the underlying action
goes forward in the Appellate Division of the SupeCourt.

The Company is also subject to other pending Ipgadeedings and claims that arise from time to fimthe ordinary course of its business,
which may or may not be covered by insurance.

The litigation and other claims previously noted anbject to inherent uncertainties and managesnaetv of these matters may change in
the future. Were an unfavorable final outcome touncthere exists the possibility of a materialede impact on the Company's consolidated
financial position and the consolidated resultspérations for the period in which the effect beesmeasonably estimable.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgchiolders during the quarter ended January 1, 2005
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company's Common Stock is traded on The Nadd#ignal Market under the Symbol "RCMT". The follmg table sets forth
approximate high and low sales prices for the teary in the period ended January 1, 2005 as repoyt&he Nasdaq National Market:

Common Stock

Fiscal 2003 High Low
First Quarter.......ccoceeeevivieeceennnns $4.08 $2.52
Second Quarter......cccvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeenn, 3.98 2.10
Third Quarter 5.50 3.39
Fourth Quarter...........cccocoeveeveveeenns $7.69 $4.81

Fiscal 2004
First Quarter.........c..cccceeevvveennnn. $8.06 $6.48
Second Quarter.......ccccccevveeeeeerenennns 7.69 3.89
Third Quarter 6.73 3.95
Fourth Quarter..........cccceeevvveeeeeennnes $5.15 $4.00

Holders

As of March 1, 2005, the approximate number of addf record of the Company's Common Stock was Based upon the requests for

proxy information in connection with the Companylest recent Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Gany believes the number of
beneficial owners of its Common Stock is approxiha®,693.

Dividends

The Company has never declared or paid a cashedigidn the Common Stock and does not anticipateagayy cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. It is the current policy of @@mpany's Board of Directors to retain all earsit@finance the development and expansion
of the Company's business. Any future paymentvitidnds will be at the discretion of the Board afdators and will depend upon, among
other things, the Company's earnings, financiatlt@m, capital requirements, level of indebtednesstractual restrictions and other factors
that the Board of Directors deems relevant. TheoRéwg Credit Facility (as defined in Item 7 hergpfohibits the payment of dividends or
distributions on account of the Company's capitatls without the prior consent of the majority bétCompany's lenders.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected historical consolidated financial deda derived from the Company's Consolidated FilshStatements. The selected historical
consolidated financial data should be read in ametjon with "Management's Discussion and Analy$iBinancial Condition and Results of
Operations" and the Consolidated Financial Statésnagfithe Company, and notes thereto, includedmlsee herein.

Years Ended

January 1, December 27, December 28, December 29, December 30,
2005 (2) 2003 2002 2001 2000
Income Statement
Revenues $169,277,490 $206,605,188 $186,650,616  $234,739,06 6  $305,444,247
Gross profit 40,973,845 44,594,686 46,664,861 62,575,74 0 78,045,164
Income before the charges
listed below 4,412,205 6,812,107 8,005,135 9,407,07 2 11,058,650
Amortization, net of tax (41,000) (18,000) (12,000) (5,385,00 0) (4,390,000)
Goodwill impairment, net of tax (2,164,338) (24,748,000) (22,758,00 0) (26,534,000)
Unusual items, net of tax (6,414,000) (2,083,000)
Equity compensation, net of tax (4,014,954)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 2,206,867 2,779,153  (23,168,865)  (18,735,92 8)  (21,948,350)
(Loss) gain from discontinued
operations (967,065) (20,04 1) 51,964
Net income (loss) $2,206,867 $2,779,153  ($24,135,930) ($18,755,96 9) (%$21,896,386)

Earnings Per Share (1)
Income (loss) from continuing

Operations $.19 $.26 ($2.19) ($1.7 8) ($2.09)
(Loss) gain from discontinued
Operations (.09)
Net income (loss) (basic
and diluted) $.19 $.26 ($2.28) ($1.7 8) ($2.09)
January 1, December 27, December 28, December 29, December 30,
2005 (2) 2003 2002 2001 2000

Balance Sheet

Working capital $29,544,955 $23,881,579  $16,516,062 $10,977,13 1 $56,508,604
Total assets 98,100,933 99,703,589 88,439,784 131,155,94 5 174,268,828
Long term liabilities 49,483,873
Total liabilities 28,155,897 32,533,493 29,193,630 47,866,14 5 72,206,502
Shareholders' equity 69,945,036 $67,170,096  $59,246,154 $83,289,80 0 $102,062,326

(1) Shares used in computing earnings per share:

Basic 11,325,626 10,716,179 10,585,503 10,519,70 1 10,499,305
Diluted 11,679,811 10,896,305 10,585,503 10,519,70 1 10,499,305
(2) Year ended January 1, 2005 had fifty-three week s and all other years had

fifty-two weeks.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

RCM participates in a market that is cyclical inura and extremely sensitive to economic changes fesult, the impact of economic
changes on revenues and operations can be voltgeCompany's consolidated revenues have declib&do or $142.1 million from a peak
of $311 million in the year ended October 30, 1999.

During the latter portion of the 1990's RCM madg#icant personnel and infrastructure investmémtsupport a high-growth strategy
through broad-based market penetration and aciguisitThe dramatic slowdown in the United Statememy, which began during 2000,
prompted management to reconsider its strategidinregard, the Company initiated reductionssrstaff personnel and office requirements
in response to the decrease in sales volume ipee2001. Since that time, management has cowmtittumonitor its operating cost structure
in order to maintain a cost benefit relationshithwevenues. In addition, there has been an ondowgs on working capital management and
cash flows. These efforts have resulted in an ingmreent in accounts receivable collections, dehtetdn and improved cash flows.
Furthermore, the Company has improved disciplingsimarketing and sales strategies by providingoge cohesive and relevant marketing
and sales approach to new and existing customdra@m focuses on growth in targeted vertical marketd in service offerings providing
greater revenue opportunities.

The Company believes that most companies have memjthe importance of the Internet and informratitanagement technologies to
compete in today's business climate. However, tloeniain economic environment has curtailed mamypamies' motivation for rapid
adoption of many technological enhancements. Thegss of designing, developing and implementingnsot solutions has become
increasingly complex. The Company believes thatyntmpanies today are focused on return on investarlysis in prioritizing the
initiatives they undertake. This has had the efféctelaying or totally negating spending on mameegging new solutions, which
management formerly had anticipated.

Nonetheless, the Company continues to believe Thatanagers must integrate and manage computinigogmvents consisting of multip
computing platforms, operating systems, databasgésiaetworking protocols, and must implement pactlegydtware applications to support
existing business objectives. Companies also rneedritinually keep pace with new developments, ioiten render existing equipment :
internal skills obsolete. Consequently, businesseds cause IT managers to support increasinglypdexrsystems and applications of
significant strategic value, while working underdigetary, personnel and expertise constraints. ffldsgyiven rise to a demand for
outsourcing. The Company believes that its curcéants and prospective future clients are contigub evaluate the potential for outsourt
business critical applications and entire busitfiesstions.

The Company provides project management and camgsiérvices which are billed based on either arexjupon fixed fee or hourly rates,
or a combination of both. The billing rates andfiprmargins for project management and solutiongises are higher than those for
professional consulting services. The Company @diyegndeavors to expand its sales of higher magiations and project management
services. The Company also realizes revenues fliemt engagements that range from the placemecomiact and temporary technical
consultants to project assignments that entaitiiwery of end-to-end solutions. These servicespaimarily provided to the client at hourly
rates that are established for each of the Companyisultants based upon their skill level, expegeand the type of work performed.

The majority of the Company's services are provigiedier purchase orders. Contracts are utilizedeario of the more complex assignments
where the engagements are for longer terms or witemse documentation on the nature and scogeeatdsignment is necessary. Although
contracts normally relate to longer-term and mamglex engagements, they do not obligate the custéorpurchase a minimum level of
services and are generally terminable by the custam 60 to 90 days' notice. Revenues are recagjmbhen services are provided.

17



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Overview (Continued)

Costs of services consist primarily of salaries amthpensation-related expenses for billable coastdt including payroll taxes, employee
benefits and insurance. Selling, general and adtnitive expenses consist primarily of salarieslzmnkfits of personnel responsible for
business development, recruiting, operating a@iviand training, and include corporate overhea@eses. Corporate overhead expenses
relate to salaries and benefits of personnel resplenfor corporate activities, including the Compa corporate marketing, administrative
and reporting responsibilities and acquisition pang. The Company records these expenses whenédcDepreciation relates primarily to
the fixed assets of the Company. Amortization esldb a covenant not to compete resulting fromadribe Company's acquisitions.
Acquisitions have been accounted for under thehase method of accounting for financial reportinggpses and have created goodwiill.

Critical Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles generally acceptechia tnited States, which require
management to make subjective decisions, assessmedtestimates about the effect of matters tieanherently uncertain. As the number
of variables and assumptions affecting the judgsamreases, such judgments become even more subjathile management believes
that its assumptions are reasonable and appropsictieal results may be materially different thatineated. The Company has identified
certain critical accounting policies, describedobelthat require significant judgment to be exexdiby management.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssuddl of the Company's segments perform staffeyices. The Company's Professi
Engineering Services and Information Technologwi8es segments also perform project services. mfagrhation Technology Services
segment also derives revenue from permanent platdiees.

Project Services - The Company recognizes reveinuescordance with the Securities and Exchange Gsesiom, Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) Number 104, "Revenue Recognition." SAB 1Giiles application of U.S. generally accepted actimg principles to revenue
transactions. Project services are generally peavih a cost-plus-fixed-fee or time-and-materigidarypically, a customer will outsource a
discrete project or activity and the Company assurasponsibility for the performance of such prbgcactivity. The Company recognizes
revenues and associated costs on a gross basis/ees are provided to the customer and costmevered using its employees. The
Company, from time to time, enters into contraetpuiring the completion of specific deliverablebeTCompany recognizes revenue on these
deliverables at the time the client accepts andags the deliverables. In instances where prgjestices are provided on a fixed-price basis
and the contract will extend beyond a 12-monthqaknievenue is recorded in accordance with theg@feach contract. In some instances,
revenue is billed and recorded at the time certdlastones are reached, as defined in the contraother instances, revenue is billed and
recorded based upon contractual rates per hoaddition, some contracts contain "Performance Féesiuses) for completing a contract
under budget. Performance Fees, if any, are redanthen the contract is completed and the reventesaisonably certain of collection. Some
contracts also limit revenues and billings to maximamounts. Provision for contract losses, if aynade in the period such losses are
determined. Expenses related to contracts thaheéxieyond a 12-month period are charged to CaSenfices as incurred.

Staffing Services - Revenues derived from staffiagyices are recorded on a gross basis as seare@erformed and associated costs have
been incurred using employees of the Company.dseltircumstances, the Company assumes the réglceptability of its employees to its
customers. In certain cases, the Company mayeitlizer companies and their employees to fulfiftomer requirements. In these cases, the
Company receives an administrative fee for arragépn, billing for and collecting the billings retd to these companies. The customer is
typically responsible for assessing the work ostheompanies who have responsibility for acceptgluif their personnel to the customer.
Under these circumstances, the Company's repateshues are net of associated costs (effectiveladministrative fee).
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Permanent Placement Services - The Company eanm&pent placement fees from providing permanertegpieent services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guaranteesritsapent placements on a pror
basis for 90 days. In the event a candidate isatained for the 90-day period, the Company witlyile a suitable replacement candidate. In
the event a replacement candidate cannot be lgdae@€ompany will provide a prorated refund to ¢hent. An allowance for refunds, based
upon the Company's historical experience, is rembid the financial statements. Revenues are redard a gross basis as a component of
revenue.

Accounts Receivable

The Company's accounts receivable are primarilyfchre trade customers. Credit is extended basezlatuation of customers' financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not regdirAccounts receivable payment terms vary andtatedin the financial statements at
amounts due from customers net of an allowancddabtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longer thapayment terms are considered
past due. The Company determines its allowancebgidering a number of factors, including the léngfttime trade accounts receivable are
past due, the Company's previous loss historygtiseomer's current ability to pay its obligatiortte Company, and the condition of the
general economy and the industry as a whole. Thepaay writes off accounts receivable when they bexancollectible, and payments
subsequently received on such receivables aretedetti the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Goodwill and Intangibles

The Company follows Statement of Financial AccoumtStandards ("SFAS") No. 142, "Goodwill and Othrtangible Assets." Accordingly,
the Company evaluates the carrying value and reability of its goodwill by evaluating the fair maat value of the reporting units within
which goodwill resides. The process of estimatig¥alue, in part, relies on the use of forectsisstimate future cash flows expected frc
reporting unit as well as the use of market mwdigh determining fair market value. In order toreate future cash flows, management must
make subjective judgments based on reasonableuppdidable assumptions and projections. The pefmdsstimating future cash flows are
uncertain, which increases the risk that actualréutesults could significantly deviate from estiesa Changes in future market conditions,
Company's strategy, or other factors could haveffett upon the future values of these reportingsumwhich could result in future
impairment charges.

Accounting for Stock Options

The Company has used stock options to attracinratal reward employees for long-term service. @G®lyeaccepted accounting principles
allow alternative methods of accounting for thesaras. The Company has chosen to account foraitk gtlans (including stock option

plans) under Accounting Principle Board ("APB") @ipin 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employe&ince option exercise prices
reflect the market value per share of the Compastgsk upon grant, no compensation expense relatstthck options is reflected in the
Company's income statement. SFAS No. 123, "Accagrfor Stock-Based Compensation,” prescribes tieerative method of accounting

for stock options. Had SFAS 123 been adopted, tragany would have recorded additional pre-tax coégpproximately $321,000,
$500,000 and $898,000 for the years ended Janu&g05, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2082ecévely. The pro forma
compensation cost was calculated using the Blatiol®s Options Pricing Model, which includes estiesdbased on assumptions for the risk-
free interest rate, life of options and stock prodatility and is based upon freely traded optidbeanges in the underlying assumptions ci
affect the pro forma compensation cost.
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Accounting for Stock Options (Continued)

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansi&uiard issued SFAS No.

123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, whicheadds the accounting for employee stock option&S3¥o. 123R eliminates the ability

to account for shared-based compensation trangaaiging APB 25 and generally would require instiad such transactions be accounted
for using a fair value-based method. SFAS No. 1aRBR requires that tax benefits associated withelshare-based payments be classified a:
financing activities in the statement of cash fl@ther than operating activities as currently paadi SFAS No. 123R becomes effective for
interim or annual periods beginning after June2®5. Accordingly, the Company is required to apgpBAS No. 123R beginning fiscal
guarter ended October 1, 2005. SFAS No. 123R o#fikesnative methods of adopting this final rule tihe present time, the Company has

yet determined which alternative method it will u

Accounting for Income Taxes

In establishing the provision for income taxes daterred income tax assets and liabilities, andatan allowances against deferred tax
assets, the Company makes judgments and inteipretdtased on enacted tax laws, published tax gaédand estimates of future earnings.
As of January 1, 2005, the Company had total niefrded tax assets of $5.0 million. This includedO$hillion relating to federal and state
operating loss carry forwards and $3.2 milliondaeserve for litigation charges. Realization deded tax assets is dependent upon the
likelihood that future taxable income will be suféint to realize these benefits over time, anceffectiveness of tax planning strategies in the
relevant tax jurisdictions. In the event that atteaults differ from these estimates and assessmadditional valuation allowances may be
required.

Forward-looking Information

The Company's growth prospects are influenced bsibeconomic trends. The pace of customer cajpiéadding programs, new product
launches and similar activities have a direct imjpacthe need for consulting and engineering sesvas well as temporary and permanent
employees. Should the U.S. economy decline, thegaogis operating performance could be adverselaateg. The Company believes that
its fiscal discipline, strategic focus on targetedtical markets and diversification of serviceenfifigs provides some insulation from adverse
trends. However, further declines in the econonuccoesult in the need for future cost reductionstmnges in strategy.

Additionally, changes in government regulationsldo@sult in prohibition or restriction of certaiypes of employment services or the
imposition of new or additional employee benefitgnsing or tax requirements with respect to ttavision of employment services that n
reduce RCM's future earnings. There can be no asseithat RCM will be able to increase the feesgduhto its clients in a timely manner
and in a sufficient amount to cover increased casta result of any of the foregoing.

The employment services market is highly competitiith limited barriers to entry. RCM competes lalml, national, regional and local
markets with numerous consulting, engineering andleyment companies. Price competition in the imdess the Company serves is
significant, and pricing pressures from competitord customers are increasing. RCM expects thdedet of competition will remain high
in the future, which could limit RCM's ability toamtain or increase its market share or profitgbili
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Results of Operations (In thousands, except for ear nings per share data)
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
J anuary 1, 2005 December 27, 2003 Dec ember 28, 2002
% of % of % of Revenue
Amou nt Revenue  Amount Revenue  Amou nt

Revenues $169 277 100.0 $206,605 100.0 $186 ,651 100.0
Cost of services 128 ,303 75.8 162,010 78.4 139 ,986 75.0
Gross profit 40 ,974 24.2 44,595 21.6 46 ,665 25.0
Selling, general and administrative 34 ,330 20.3 32,558 15.8 33 ,320 17.9
Depreciation and amortization 1 ,219 7 1,223 .6 1 ,279 N4
Compensation expense for
stock option tender offer 6,692 3.2
Litigation charge 9 ,718 5.2
Impairment of goodwiill 2 ,164 1.3 29 ,990 16.1
Other expense, net 450 3 182 1 156 1
Income (loss) from continuing
operations  before income taxes 2 ,811 1.6 3,940 19 (27 ,798) (15.0)
Income taxes (benefit) 604 3 1,161 6 4 ,629) (2.5)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2 ,207 1.3 2,779 13 (23 ,169) (12.5)
Loss from discontinued operations, net
of taxes (967) (.5)
Net income (loss) $2 ,207 1.3 $2,779 1.3 (%24 ,136) (13.0)

Earnings per share
Basic and Diluted:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ .19 $.26 ($2 .19)
Discontinued operations ( .09)
Net income (loss) $ .19 $.26 ($2 .28)

The above summary is not a presentation of restitbperations under generally accepted accountimgiples and should not be considered
in isolation or as an alternative to results ofragiens as an indication of the Company's perfogaan

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to DeceBibek 53-week year occurs
periodically. The fiscal year ended 2004 is a 5&kvwe=porting year. Therefore, the reporting pegaded January 1, 2005 consists of fifty-
three weeks as compared to the same period irrittreyears, which ended on December 27, 2003 arm@idber 28, 2002 consisting of fifty-
two weeks. Unless specifically noted otherwise ftiewing discussion does not reflect the additibone week in the fiscal year ended 2(

Year Ended January 1, 2005 Compared to Year Ended é&ember 27, 2003

Revenues. Revenues decreased 18.1%, or $37.3mifbiiothe year ended January 1, 2005 as compariw same period in the prior year
(the "comparable prior year period"). The reveneerdased $8.0 million in the Information Technology

("IT") segment, decreased $35.5 million in the Bssfonal Engineering ("PE")

segment and increased $6.2 million in the Commkg&gavices ("CS") segment. Management attributestrerall decrease to the conclusion
in accordance with the terms of two major contracthe IT and PE segments in early 2004 as wedl saftening of demand for information

technology services, offshore competition and wpdead pricing pressures. The aggregate revenuestfr® two major contracts in fiscal
2003 were $31.9 million.

21



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Year Ended January 1, 2005 Compared to Year Ended ézember 27, 2003
(Continued)

Cost of Services. Cost of services decreased 2mB%33.7 million, for the year ended January D328s compared to the comparable prior
year period. This decrease was primarily due taltarease in costs associated with the conclugibmoomajor contracts in early 2004. Ci

of services as a percentage of revenues decraa3&dBs for the year ended January 1, 2005 fro#i%8or the comparable prior year
period. This decrease was primarily attributabla ttecrease in subcontracted labor related to lavgim revenues in the PE segment. This
subcontracted labor was part of a major contrakichvconcluded in early 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, gethiend administrative ("SGA") expenses increasdéoSor $1.8 million, for the year ended
January 1, 2005 as compared to the comparableyw@rperiod. This increase was primarily attriblggo increased healthcare costs,
statutory payroll taxes and one additional wee8GA payroll. SGA expenses as a percentage of reganare 20.3% for the year ended
January 1, 2005 as compared to 15.8% for the cabfgaprior year period. This increase was primaaityibutable to decline revenue of
$37.3 million or 18.1%.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and etmation decreased 0.3%, or $4,000, for 2004 aspesed to 2003.

Other Expense. Other expense consisted of intexgginse, net of interest income and gains anddasséoreign currency transactions. For
the year ended January 1, 2005, actual interesinsepof $536,000 was offset by $61,700 of inténestme, which was principally earned
from short-term money market deposits. Intereseagp, net, increased $160,000 for the year endedal, 2005 as compared to the
comparable prior year period. This increase wasgmily due to an increase in the effective interast on the line of credit for the year en
January 1, 2005 as compared to the comparableyw@rperiod. Gains on foreign currency transastibecreased $107,000 because of the
stabilization of the Canadian Dollar during theryeaded January 1, 2005 as compared to the stemmgthof the Canadian Dollar in relation
to the U.S. Dollar in the comparable prior yeariquekr

Income Tax. Income tax expense decreased 47.9%865,000, for the year ended January 1, 2005 apa@u to the comparable prior year
period. The effective tax rate was 21.5% for tharyended January 1, 2005 as compared to 29.4%daamparable prior year period. These
decreases were attributable to a nondeductiblewgilachpairment charge of $2.2 million in fiscal geended January 1, 2005, which was
offset by a change in the valuation allowance. @tfiective tax rate net of the goodwill charge ahdrge in valuation allowance is 27.1% for
the year ended January 1, 2005 as compared to Z8rd¥e comparable prior year. This decrease weabatable to a decrease in the
Canadian income tax rate.

Goodwill Impairment. SFAS 142 requires the Compamgerform a goodwill impairment test on at leaseanual basis. For purposes of its
2004, 2003 and 2002 annual impairment testingCitrapany determined the fair value of its reportings using relative market multiples
for comparable businesses, as of November 30, 2ZD8 and 2002, respectively. The analysis revealgdgoodwill, amounting to
approximately $2.2 million and $30.0 million ($24ifllion after taxes) had been impaired for thedisyears ended January 1, 2005 and
December 28, 2002, respectively and therefore, dvoat be recoverable through future profitable apens. The results of the 2003
impairment testing indicated no impairment to goiidWhere can be no assurance that future goodmiblairment tests will not result in
further impairment charges.
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Year Ended January 1, 2005 Compared to Year Ended ézember 27, 2003
(Continued)

Segment Discussion (See Footnote 15)
Information Technology ("IT")

IT revenues of $92.9 million in 2004 decreased $8illon, or 7.9%, compared to 2003. The declines\wancipally attributable to a softeni
of demand for information technology services, lodfi® competition and widespread pricing pressigasings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") for the §Egment was $2.1 million, or 2.3% of revenues2f04 as compared to $7.3 million, or
7.2% of revenues, for 2003. The EBITDA margin patage decrease was due to the conclusion of a hfagamtract in early 2004.

Professional Engineering ("PE")

PE revenues of $51.2 million in 2004 decreased38#llion, or 41.0%, compared to 2003. The PE sagr&®ITDA was $2.8 million, or
5.5% of revenues for 2004 as compared to $3.4anijllbr 3.9% of revenues for 2003. The decreasevienue was attributable to the
conclusion of a major engineering contract in eafl94 on which RCM had accepted lower margins.

Commercial Services ("CS")

CS revenues of $25.2 million in 2004 increased $@ilRon, or 32.4% compared to 2003. The increaseevenues for the CS segment was
attributable to improvement in economic activitythim this segment. The CS segment EBITDA was ad6$2128,000, or 1.7% of revenues,
as compared to income of $334,000, or 1.8% of neeenfor 2003. The overall decline is principaliributable to competitive pricing
pressures, an unfavorable worker's compensatiomgmatarket in California and start-up expenses @ased with market expansion of the
specialty health care group. The revenues in thedg®ent increased in absolute dollars as compaithe decrease in revenues in the IT
PE segments which resulted in a larger allocatfaogporate overhead burden to the CS segmentrapared to the same period a year ago.

Year Ended December 27, 2003 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 28, 2002

Revenues. Revenues increased 10.7%, or $20.0 miltio 2003 as compared to 2002. The revenue isereas primarily attributable to
increased revenues in the Professional Enginesggment. Management attributed this increase pifirtaran increase in subcontracted
revenues on a major project with respect to whi€iMRvas the general contractor. Subcontracted reasrecognized by RCM for 2003 wi
approximately $24.2 million as compared to $4.7ionlfor 2002. RCM, as general contractor on thajon project, subcontracts certain tasks
outside of RCM's core competencies as agreed utbrREM's customer.

Cost of Services. Cost of services increased 150r%22.0 million, for 2003 as compared to 2002isThcrease was primarily due to an
increase in subcontractor costs associated witle@sed subcontracted revenues experienced durd®y 2ost of services as a percentage of
revenues increased to 78.4% for 2003 from 75.092@02. This increase was primarily attributabl@toincrease of the Company's revenues
being derived from Professional Engineering sesjig¢hich have historically had lower gross profangins.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, gett@nd administrative ("SGA") expenses decreasgh2or $762,000 for 2003 as compared
to 2002. This decrease was primarily attributablertgoing cost cutting and cost containment initeet. SGA expenses as a percentage of
revenues were 15.8% for 2003 as compared to 1708%2002.
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Year Ended December 27, 2003 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 28, 2002
(Continued)

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and giration decreased 2.8%, or $35,000, for 2003oaspared to 2002. This decrease was
primarily due to write down of impaired fixed assetior to 2003.

Other Expense. Other expense consists of intexpsinase, net of interest income and gains on foreigrency transactions. For 2003, actual
interest expense of $382,600 was offset by $68pf0fterest income, which was principally earnazhirshort-term money market deposits.
For 2002, actual interest expense of $770,000 ¥fastdy $599,000 of interest income, which wasigpally earned from an income tax
refund claim with the Internal Revenue Service. Tdduction of actual interest expense of $387,888 attributable to lower interest rates as
well as reduced need for average borrowings in 2008 reduction in interest expense was mitigatethterest on a post judgment verdict of
$7.6 million (see note 17). Gains on foreign cucsetransactions increased $115,300 because ofrérggthening of the Canadian Dollar as
compared to the U.S. Dollar.

Income Tax. Income tax expense increased 125.2%5.8rmillion, for fiscal 2003 as compared to fis@02. This increase was attributable
to the increased level of income before taxesifmaf 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002. The effedtix rate was 29.5% for fiscal 2003 as
compared to an effective refund rate of 16.6% ifardl 2002. The increase was attributable to aatémhu of tax deductible amortization of
intangibles in 2003.

Litigation Charge. In 1998, two shareholders, whayevformerly officers and directors of the Compdilgd suit against the Company
alleging wrongful termination of their employmef#ilure to make required severance payments, wrdrgihduct by the Company in
connection with the grant of stock options, andngfal conduct by the Company resulting in the nestiture of their option grants. The
complaint also alleged that the Company wrongflithited the number of shares of the Company's comstock that could have been sold
by the plaintiffs under a Registration Rights Agremt entered into in connection with the underlyaieguisition transaction pursuant to
which the plaintiffs became shareholders of the gamy. The claim under the Registration Rights Agreet sought the difference between
the amount for which plaintiffs could have solditHeCM shares during the 12-month period ended Markt, 1999, but for the alleged
wrongful limitation on their sales, and the amofantwhich the plaintiffs sold their shares durimgt period and thereafter.

The claim relating to the wrongful termination bétemployment of one of the plaintiffs and therogof both plaintiffs concerning the grant
of stock options were resolved in binding arbitratin early 2003. A trial on the remaining clainssranenced on December 2, 2002 and a
verdict was returned on January 24, 2003. On thiensl by both plaintiffs, concerning the alleged mgful limiting of the number of shares
that they could sell during the 12-month periodezhitflarch 11, 1999, a verdict awarding damages & ®ifllion against the Company was
returned. On June 23, 2003, the trial judge detiiedCompany's post-trial motions that challengedtiny's verdict and the trial judge also
upheld the jury's verdict. On August 4, 2003, tted fudge entered a judgment in favor of the piffimfor $7.6 million in damages and
awarded plaintiffs $172,000 in post-verdict prejodmt interest. Post-judgment interest will contitm@ccrue on the damages portion of the
judgment after August 2003 at the rate of 4% per annum. The Company psated from, and obtained a stay pending appetiatf
judgment. In order to secure the stay, the Compaage a cash deposit in lieu of bond of $8.3 millith the Trust Fund of the Superi

Court of New Jersey. This deposit is recorded ssioted cash on the consolidated balance sheetamd interest at a rate that approximates
the daily federal funds rate. The plaintiffs havess-appealed from the Court's denial of pre-vémhiejudgment interest on the damages
portion of the August 4, 2003 judgment and from@wart's refusal to grant judgment as a matteawftb one of the plaintiffs on his claim
for severance pay in the amount of $240,000 pliesést. The briefing phase of the appeal has bespleted. The timing of a ruling on the
appeal cannot be predicted at this time.

In connection with this litigation, the Company ad $9.7 million of litigation charges at DecemB8r 2002, which includes the jury award
of $7.6 million, professional fees of $1.1 milliand an estimate of $1.0 million for attorney feed pre-judgment interest. The after-tax
effect of the litigation on 2002 earnings is $6.dlion.
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Year Ended December 27, 2003 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 28, 2002
(Continued)

Goodwill Impairment. The Company performed an impaint review in accordance with the requirementSFAS No. 142 for the fiscal
years 2003 and 2002. During the fourth quartersaiaf 2002 the review indicated that there wasygpairment of value, which resulted it
$30.0 million ($24.7 million net of income tax béhef $5.2 million) charge to expense for the yeaded December 28, 2002 in order to
properly reflect the appropriate carrying valuggobdwill. The results of the 2003 impairment tegtindicated no further impairment to
goodwill.

Compensation Expense for Stock Option Tender. dieroto enhance long-term value for the shareholofettse Company, reduce the number
of options outstanding and improve the Companyilgtyato retain and provide incentives to employeasl directors, on September 30, 2003,
the Company made a tender offer to exchange stoiins with a strike price of $7.00 or greaterdhares of restricted stock and cash.

Upon expiration of the tender offer on November2@03, option holders participating in the tendéeroreceived 607,777 shares of restric
stock having an aggregate value of $3.8 million¥®6er share) as well as cash consideration éfi$lion, which was equal to 67% of the
value of the restricted common stock. Participantsendered options to purchase 1,327,973 shasgsak, which represented 100% of all
options eligible to be surrendered. The CompangroEd a charge of $6.7 million ($4.0 million aftax) to equity compensation expense in
the fourth quarter of 2003 due to the tender offeovided the Company has positive U.S. Federald@xincome in future periods, the
exchange offer will be approximately cash flow malito the Company as the combined tax benefitth(ie restricted common stock issued
and the cash consideration paid are tax deduatitpenses) will be approximately equal the actush @nsideration paid to employees and
directors.

Loss from Discontinued Operations. In August 2a82,Company sold a reporting unit in the commersgaices business segment for
$100,000, which resulted in a loss of $1.6 mill{#867,000 net of income tax benefit of $644,000$.00 per share for fiscal 2002. In
accordance with SFAS 144, the loss is presented@ss from discontinued operations in the statésneinncome for fiscal 2002. The tax
effected operating results of the reporting unitl seere losses of $29,000 for fiscal 2002 and actueled from income from continuing
operations.
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Year Ended December 27, 2003 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 28, 2002
(Continued)

Segment Discussion (See Footnote 15)
Information Technology ("IT")

IT revenues of $101 million decreased $10.4 miliim2003 or 9.3% compared to 2002. The decline praipally attributable to a softening
of demand for information technology services,weak economy, offshore competition and widespreadhg pressures. The IT segment
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation amgttization ("EBITDA") was $7.3 million or 7.2% oévenues for 2003 as compared to an
EBITDA loss of $21.9 million or 19.7% of revenues 2002. The EBITDA margin percentage improvemeas @ue to ongoing cost
containment efforts.

Professional Engineering ("PE")

PE revenues of $86.7 million in 2003 increased B&dillion or 54.9% compared to 2002. A significaeason for the increase was the
revenues generated from engineering services mdviman electric utility plant in Canada. The REment EBITDA was $3.4 million or
3.9% of revenues for 2003 as compared to $4.7anibhr 8.4% of revenues for 2002. The decline waibatable to subcontracted revenues
recognized by RCM for 2003 of approximately $24 ifliom as compared to $4.7 million for 2002. RCM, general contractor on this major
project, subcontracts certain tasks for which RQigeats lower margins.

Commercial Services ("CS")

CS revenues of $19.0 million in 2003 decreased $@&bor 1.9% compared to 2002. This modest dewlare principally attributable to a
weak economy. The CS segment EBITDA was $334,00088% of revenues as compared to $561,000 or 2f8%venues for 2002. The
overall decline is principally attributable to coetjpive pricing pressures and an unfavorable wéskaympensation rating market in
California.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the major captiaonstthe Company's Consolidated Statements of ClastsF

Year Ended Year Ended
(In Thousands) January 1, 2005 December 27, 2003
Operating Activities (%424 ) $2,893
Investing Activities ($494 ) ($1,782)
Financing Activities ($2,011 ) $55

Operating Activities

Operating activities used $424,000 of cash foryer ended January 1, 2005 as compared to opegdtiivities providing $2.9 million of

cash for the comparable 2003 period. The decreasash provided by operating activities was prilgaitributable to decreased earnings, an
increase in accounts receivable, and a decreaszounts payable and accrued expenses and incaesepayable, which was partially offset
by a decrease in prepaid expenses and other cagsets, an increase in accrued payroll and pamdliwithheld taxes. The significant rea
for the increase in accounts receivable is theydal@rocessing of invoices at one client. SubsatiteeJanuary 1, 2005 and through February
15, 2005, the Company received $1.4 million of3aauary 1, 2005 accounts receivables from the mfeméoned client. The Company
continues to institute enhanced managerial con&madsstandardization over its receivables collecsiod disbursement processes.

Investing Activities

Investing activities used $494,000 for the yeareehdanuary 1, 2005 as compared to $1.8 milliothfercomparable 2003 period. The
decrease in the use of cash for investing actss/ftie 2004 as compared to the comparable 2003gerés primarily attributable to a decrease
in deferred consideration earn-out payments.

Financing Activities

Financing activities principally consisted of debtluction of $2.4 million for the fiscal year end#huary 1, 2005 as compared to financing
activities using $120,000 for debt reduction fae tomparable 2003 period.

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into aanded and restated loan agreement on May 31, 280&h was further amended on July
27, 2004, with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, adstiative agent for a syndicate of banks. This agrent provides for a $25.0 million
Revolving Credit Facility (the "Revolving Credit €ility"). Availability under the Revolving Creditdeility is based on 80% of the aggregate
amount of accounts receivable as to which not ritaae 90 days have elapsed since the date of thmalrinvoice. Borrowings under the
Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at onewbtalternative rates, as selected by the Compaagdat incremental borrowing. These
alternatives are: (i) LIBOR (London Interbank O#drRate), plus applicable margin, or (ii) the ademtk's prime rate. As cash flow permits
and depending on interest rate movements, the Qoynpay, from time to time and subject to a nomprapayment fee, apply available cash
flows to reduce the Revolving Credit Facility.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge of
the stock of the Company's subsidiaries. The RéwplCredit Facility also contains various finanaald non-financial covenants, such as
restrictions on the Company's ability to pay divids.

The Revolving Credit Facility expires in August B00 he weighted average interest rates under thelideg Credit Facility for the years
ended January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003 we9&3and 3.67%, respectively. The amounts outstgnatiler the Revolving Credit
Facility at January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2082 4.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively. Jenuary 1, 2005, the Company had
availability for additional borrowing under the Réwing Credit Facility of $20.0 million.

The Company anticipates that its primary uses pitakin future periods will be for working capitalirposes. Funding for any long and short
term capital requirements as well as future actjors will be derived from one or more of the Rewmody Credit Facility, funds generated
through operations, or future financing transaaiorhe Company is involved in litigation as desetilin Footnote 17 (Contingencies) to the
financial statements. The outcome of litigatiosudject to inherent uncertainties and managemaéetisof these matters may change in the
future. Were an unfavorable final outcome to octhere exists the possibility of a material advenggact on our financial position, liquidity,
and the results of operations for the period inclwtihe effect becomes reasonably estimable.

The Company anticipates that if the plaintiffstie titigation matter, which is currently being apfesl by the Company, are successful in t
appeal of the damages, it would need to borrowsuntter its Revolving Credit Facility in order tatisfy payment of the additional damag
The Company believes that its borrowing base iBcserfit to allow this additional borrowing.

The Company's business strategy is to achieve grbath internally through operations and externtilpugh strategic acquisitions. The
Company from time to time engages in discussiottls patential acquisition candidates. As the sizthefCompany and its financial
resources increase, however, acquisition oppoitsniequiring significant commitments of capitalynaaise. In order to pursue such
opportunities, the Company may be required to imtalnot or issue potentially dilutive securitiestie future. No assurance can be given as to
the Company's future acquisition and expansion dppities or how such opportunities will be finadce

The Company does not currently have material comanits for capital expenditures and does not cuyrenticipate entering into any such
commitments during the next twelve months. The Camfs current commitments consist primarily of éeabligations for office space. The
Company believes that its capital resources afecsift to meet its present obligations and thaske incurred in the normal course of
business for the next twelve months.

At January 1, 2005, the Company had a deferredgaat totaling $5.0 million, primarily representthg tax effect of the net operating loss
carry forwards, and the litigation reserve. The @any expects to utilize the deferred tax assenduhie twelve months ending December
2005 by offsetting the related tax benefits of sasbets against tax liabilities incurred from fasted taxable income.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)

Summarized below are the Company's obligationscantmitments to make future payments under leaseaggnts and debt obligations as
of January 1, 2005 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than Mor e Than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5Years 5 Years
Long-Term Debt Obligations (1) $4,900 $4,900
Operating Lease Obligations 9,553 $2,455 3,230 $1,790 $2,078
Total $14,453 $2,455 $8,130 $1,790 $2.078
(1) The Revolving Credit Facility is for $25.0 mil lion and includes a sub
limit of $2.0 million for letters of credit. The a greement expires in
August 2006. At January 1, 2005 there was an outst anding letter of credit

for $116,000.

Significant employment agreements are as follows:
Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with isf Elxecutive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt ¢:Mopyt"), which currently
provides for an annual base salary of $475,00008mer customary benefits. In addition, the agreerpesvides that Mr. Kopyt's annual boi
is based on EBITDA, defined as earnings beforeéstetaxes, depreciation and amortization. Asaofidry 1, 2005, the agreement expire
February 28, 2008. The agreement is for a roll@rgntof three years, which automatically extend$ig@ar for an additional one-year period
on February 28 of each year. The employment agneeiméerminable by the Company upon Mr. Kopyt'attieor disability, or for "good and
severance cause"”, as defined in the agreement.

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with Mr. Kopyt amended and restated as othas, 1997 (the "Benefits
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Benefits Agreemettipiang a Change in Control (as defined thereihg temaining term of Mr. Kopyt's
employment is extended for five years (the "Exteh@lerm”). If Mr. Kopyt's employment is terminatdeeteafter by the Company other than
for cause, or by Mr. Kopyt for good reason (inchgliamong other things, a material change in Mpys salary, title, reporting
responsibilities or a change in office location @rhrequires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), then the follogvprovisions take effect: the Company is
obligated to pay Mr. Kopyt a lump sum equal togatary and bonus for the remainder of the ExteAdach; and the Company shall be
obligated to pay to Mr. Kopyt the amount of anyisgdax associated with the benefits provided toHpyt under the Benefits Agreement.
If such a termination had taken place as of JanLa?p05, Mr. Kopyt would have been entitled tohcpayments of approximately $3.2
million (representing salary and excise tax paymsent
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, dated June 10, 2002, (the "Severancee@gient”). The agreement provides
for certain payments to be made to Mr. Kopyt andfie continuation of Mr. Kopyt's employee benefiitsa specified time after his service
with the Company is terminated other than "for eguas defined in the Severance Agreement. Amquayable to Mr. Kopyt under the
Severance Agreement would be offset and reducethpyamounts received by Mr. Kopyt after his terrtioraof employment under his
current employment and termination benefits agregspevhich are supplemented and not supersedduehyaverance Agreement. If Mr.
Kopyt had been terminated as of January 1, 20@5, timder the terms of the Severance Agreemengféerdoffsetting any amounts that
would have been received under his current employseed termination benefits agreements, he wowe bha&en entitled to cash payment:
approximately $1.3 million, inclusive of employeenefits.

Impact of Inflation

Staffing and project services are generally pricasked on mark-ups on prevailing rates of pay, ararasult are able to generally maintain
their relationship to direct labor costs. Permamstement services are priced as a function afg#dvels of the job candidates. In 2004,
employee benefit costs, primarily health care goste due to an increase in the Company's healthhance premiums. After the significant
rise in insurance costs during 2002 and 2003, tirafziny implemented a plan to control these costaigih higher co-pays and pricing
adjustments during 2004. This strategy alloweddbmpany to offset a portion of these costs. The @om is continuing to review its
options to further reduce these costs, which the@amy does not believe are representative of geinflationary trends. Otherwise, inflatic
has not been a meaningful factor in the Comparpgésations.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting StandBalsrd ("FASB") released Interpretation No. 46 Giidstion of Variable Interest Entiti
("FIN 46") which requires that all primary beneéidies of Variable Interest Entities ("VIE") congtdie that entity. FIN 46 was effective
immediately for VIEs created after January 31, 2808 to VIEs in which an enterprise obtains anregeafter that date. It applies in the first
fiscal year or interim period beginning after Jdi%e 2003 to VIEs in which an enterprise holds aalde interest it acquired before February
1, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB published &i@mvto FIN 46 ("FIN 46R") to clarify some of tipeovisions of the interpretation and to
defer the effective date of implementation for aertentities. Under the guidance of FIN 46R, eggithat do not have interests in structures
that are commonly referred to as special purpostesnare required to apply the provisions of ithterpretation in financial statements for
periods ending after March 14, 2004. The Compamsdmt have interests in special purpose entitidsfze adoption of FIN 46R did not
have a material impact on the Company's consotid&tancial position, results of operations or c#stvs.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1234eeM2004), Share-Based Payment, which addressestiounting for employee stock
options. SFAS No. 123R eliminates the ability toamt for shared-based compensation transactiong A®B 25 and generally would
require instead that such transactions be accotiotesing a fair value-based method. SFAS No. 13 requires that tax benefits
associated with these share-based payments b#iethss financing activities in the statement a$le flow rather than operating activities as
currently permitted. SFAS No. 123R becomes effector interim or annual periods beginning aftereJas, 2005. Accordingly, the
Company's is required to apply SFAS No. 123R beagifiscal quarter ended October 1, 2005. SFASINER offers alternative methods of
adopting this final rule. At the present time, @@mpany has not yet determined which method it wgé.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company's exposure to market risk for chang@#érest rates relates primarily to the Compaimysstment portfolio and debt
instruments, which primarily consist of its line@gdit. The Company does not have any derivathantial instruments in its portfolio. The
Company places its investments in instrumentsrttest high credit quality standards. The Comparadiserse to principal loss and ensures
the safety and preservation of its invested fundinhiting default risk, market risk and reinvestmeisk. As of January 1, 2005, the
Company's investments consisted of cash and moaeketnfunds. The Company does not use interestimteative instruments to manage
its exposure to interest rate changes. Preserglyrtpact of a 10% (approximately 28 basis pointejaase in interest rates on its variable
(using average debt balances during the year efatadary 1, 2005 and average interest rates) wavd & relatively nominal impact on the
Company's results of operations. The Company doesxpect any material loss with respect to itestinent portfolio.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, together with the repbthe Company's independent auditors, begin oe pag.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company's management, under the supervisiow#hdhe participation of the Company's Chief Extdge Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Comfsadigclosure controls and procedures (as defm@&ilile 13a-15(e) and 15b(e) under th
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis report. Based upon that evaluation, the {Biecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that those disclosure control$ mrocedures were adequate to ensure that infaymegguired to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submitsemtthe Exchange Act is accumulated and communidatédte Company's management,
including its principal executive and principaldimcial officers, or persons performing similar ftiogs, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

A controls system, no matter how well designed @merated, cannot provide absolute assurance thatjectives of the controls system are
met, and no evaluation of controls can provide klte@ssurance that all control issues and instaotfaud, if any, within a company have
been detected.

There have been no changes in the Company's ihtangol over financial reporting that occurredidg the Company's last fiscal quarter
and that have materially affected, or are reasgriidaly to materially affect, the Company's intatwontrol over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information in the 2005 Proxy Statement begigninmediately following the caption "ELECTION OHRECTORS" to, but not
including, the caption "EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION" atige additional information in the 2005 Proxy Sta¢mt beginning immediately
following the caption "COMPLIANCE WITH

SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT" to, but not inding, the caption "BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEESS incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information in the 2005 Proxy Statement begigninmediately following the caption "EXECUTIVE CGMENSATION" to, but not
including, the caption "COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMATIVE TOTAL RETURNS" and the additional informatn in the 2005
Proxy Statement beginning immediately following tiagtion "COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INBER
PARTICIPATION" to, but not including, the captio€ERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS" incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information in the 2005 Proxy Statement begignmmediately following the caption "SECURITY OWRBHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS, DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT" to, liwnot including, the caption "ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
incorporated herein by reference.

The table below presents certain information camiogrsecurities issuable in connection with eqadmpensation plans that have been
approved by the Company's shareholders and thetiatbeen approved by the Company's shareholders.

Number of securities
remaining available for
Number of securitie stobe Weighted-average exercise  issuance under equity
issued upon exerc ise of price of outstanding compensa tion plans,
outstanding opti ons, options, warrants and excluding securities
Plan category warrants and ri ghts rights reflected in column (a)
(a) (b) ()
Equity compensation plans 1,183,583 $4.03 99 4,236
approved by security
holders...............
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security _
holders...............
1,183,583 $4.03 99 4,236

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information in the 2005 Proxy Statement begigninmediately following the caption "CERTAIN RELAONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS" is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information in the 2005 Proxy Statement beginn ing immediately following the
caption "PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICE S"is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(@) 1. and 2. Financial Statement Schedules --'lBdex to Financial Statements and Schedules" an F-
3. See Item (c) below.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The Company furnished to the Securities and Exab&@wgmnmission, on November 10, 2004, a Current RepoForm 8-K containing
disclosure pursuant to item 12 of Form 8-K.

(c) Exhibits
(3)(a) Articles of Incorporation, as amended; i

to Exhibit 3(a) to the Registrant's Annu
the year ended October 31, 1994.

ncorporated by reference
al Report on Form 10-K for

(3)(b) Amended and Restated Bylaws; incorpora
Exhibit 3 to the Registrant's Quarterl
for the quarter ended April 30, 1997.

(4)(a) Rights Agreement dated as of March 14, 1
Technologies, Inc. and American Stock Tr
Rights Agent; incorporated by reference
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K
with the Commission on March 22, 1996.

(10)(a) RCM Technologies, Inc. 1992 Ince
incorporated by reference to Exhibit A o
Statement dated March 9, 1992, filed wit
9, 1992.

(10)(b) RCM Technologies, Inc. 1994 Non-employee
Plan; incorporated by reference to the a
Registrant's Proxy Statement dated March
Commission on March 28, 1994.

ted by reference to
y Report on Form 10-Q

996, between RCM

ansfer & Trust Company, as
to Exhibit 4 to the

dated March 21, 1996 filed

ntive Stock Option Plan;
f the Registrant's Proxy
h the Commission on March

Director Stock Option
ppendix A of the
3, 1994, filed with the

* (10)(c) RCM Technologies, Inc. 1996 Executive &t@ption Plan dated August 15, 1996; incorporaiedeference to Exhibit 10(l) to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryaaded October 31, 1996, filed with the CommissionJanuary 21, 1997 (the "1996 10-
K").

* (10)(d) Second Amended and Restated Terminatiemefits Agreement dated March 18, 1997 betweeRé#ggstrant and Leon Kopyt;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) to tregRtrant's Registration Statement on Form S-ldddi@rch 21, 1997 (Commission File No.
333-23753).

* (10)(e) Amended and Restated Employment Agreemated November 30, 1996 between the Registraettéic Design, Inc. and Leon
Kopyt; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(@}te 1996 10-K.

(10)(f) Registration Rights Agreement dated March
RCM Technologies, Inc. and the former sha
Consortium; incorporated by reference to

11, 1996 by and between
reholders of The
Exhibit (c)(2) to the

Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K d
filed with the Commission on March 20, 19

* (10)(g) RCM Technologies, Inc. 2000 Emplo
incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to
Statement dated March 3, 2000, filed with
February 28, 2000.

(10)(h) Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ag
2002 between RCM Technologies, Inc. and A
with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as Ad
Arranger.
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*(10)(i) Severance Agreement dated June 10, 206&2dmn RCM Technologies, Inc. and Leon Kopyt.



PART IV (CONTINUED)

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(CONTINUED)

(c) Exhibits (Continued)

* (10)(j) Exhibit A To Severance Agreement GendRelease.

(10)(k) Amendment And Modification to Amended And
Security Agreement dated December 30, 2002
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidia
of Pennsylvania as Administrative Agent an

(20)(I) Second Amendment And Modification to Amend
Security Agreement dated February 26, 2003
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidia
of Pennsylvania as Administrative Agent an

(10)(m) Third Amendment And Modification to Amende
Security Agreement dated October 1, 2003,
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidia
of Pennsylvania as Administrative Agent an

(20)(n) Fourth Amendment And Modification to Amend
Security Agreement dated July 23, 2004, be
Inc. and all of its Subsidiaries and Citiz
as Administrative Agent and Arranger.

* (10)(o) Compensation Arrangements for Named EsxeewOfficers.

(Filed herein)

* (10)(p) Compensation Arrangements for Directors

(Filed herein)

Restated Loan and

, between RCM

ries and Citizens Bank
d Arranger.

ed And Restated Loan and
, between RCM

ries and Citizens Bank

d Arranger.

d And Restated Loan and
between RCM

ries and Citizens Bank

d Arranger.

ed And Restated Loan and
tween RCM Technologies,
ens Bank of Pennsylvania

(11) Computation of Earnings (loss) share.

(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

(23) Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Réepa by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended.
31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Reapd by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended.

32.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Réepd by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchangedk 1934, as amended. (This exhibit
shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of SectiBrof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aleeénor otherwise subject to the liability
of that section. Further, this exhibit shall notdeemed to be incorporated by reference into dimgfiinder the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934panded.)

32.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Regpd by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchangedk 1934, as amended. (This exhibit
shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of SectiBrof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aleeénor otherwise subject to the liability
of that section. Further, this exhibit shall notdeemed to be incorporated by reference into dimgfiinder the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934neended.)

* Constitutes a management contract or compensataryor arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)
Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this re
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorize

Date: March 9, 2005

Date: March 9, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exch
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and i
dates indicated. This report has been signed below

Date: March 9, 2005

Date: March 9, 2005

Date: March 9, 2005

Date: March 9, 2005

Date: March 9, 2005

of the Securities Exchange
port to be signed on its
d.

RCM Technologies, Inc.

By:/s/ Leon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive O
and Director

By:/s/ Stanton Remer
Stanton Remer
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer, Treasure
Secretary and Director

ange Act of 1934, the
n the capacities and on the

by

/sl Leon Kopyt

Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Offi
(Principal Executive Officer) and Director

/sl Stanton Remer

Stanton Remer

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Treasurer, Secretary

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

/s/ Norman S. Berson

Norman S. Berson
Director

/sl Robert B. Kerr

Robert B. Kerr
Director

/sl David Gilfor

David Gilfor
Director
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003

ASSETS
January 1, Dece
2005
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $2,401,794 $
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtf ul accounts
of $1,862,000 and $1,854,000 in fiscal 2004
and 2003, respectively 40,535,949 3
Restricted cash 8,295,625
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,503,477
Deferred tax assets 4,964,007
Total current assets 57,700,852 5
Property and equipment, at cost
Equipment and leasehold improvements 9,572,546
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,153,519
4,419,027
Other assets
Deposits 138,158
Goodwill 35,842,896 3
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizati on
of $310,800 and $242,249 in fiscal 2004
and 2003, respectively
35,981,054 3
Total assets $98,100,933 $9
F-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.

5,152,499

6,269,369
8,295,625
2,099,206
4,598,373

9,564,939
4,435,164



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED
January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

January 1, Dece
2005
Current liabilities
Line of credit $4,900,000 $
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,242,977 1
Accrued payroll 6,766,586
Payroll and withheld taxes 1,099,856
Income taxes payable 3,146,478
Total current liabilities 28,155,897 3
Shareholders' equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 5,000,000 sha res authorized,
no shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 40,000,000 share s authorized; 11,383,470 and
11,285,279 shares issued and outstanding in f iscal
2004 and 2003, respectively 569,173
Accumulated other comprehensive income 736,128
Additional paid-in capital 98,290,719 9
Accumulated deficit (29,650,984) 3
69,945,036 6
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $98,100,933 $9
F-3

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.

7,300,000
5,574,036
5,456,330

177,030
4,026,097

564,264
556,795
7,906,888
1,857,851)



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

January 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Revenues $169,277,490 $206,605,188 $186,650,616
Cost of services 128,303,645 162,010,502 139,985,755
Gross profit 40,973,845 44,594,686 46,664,861
Operating costs and expenses
Selling, general and administrative 34,330,392 32,557,953 33,320,034
Depreciation 1,149,991 1,192,293 1,258,323
Amortization 68,556 31,104 20,720
Compensation expense for stock option tender off er 6,691,590
Impairment of goodwiill 2,164,338 29,990,099
Litigation charge 9,717,663
37,713,277 40,472,940 74,306,839
Operating income (loss) 3,260,568 4,121,746 (27,641,978 )
Other (expenses) income
Interest expense, net of interest income (474,420) (314,491) (171,900)
Gain on foreign currency transactions 24,954 132,296 16,967
(449,466) (182,195) (154,933)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes 2,811,102 3,939,551 (27,796,911)
Income tax expense (benefit) 604,235 1,160,398 (4,628,046)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,206,867 2,779,153 (23,168,865)
Loss from discontinued operations
net of taxes of $644,000 (967,065)
Net income (loss) $2,206,867 $2,779,153 ($24,135,930)
F-4

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

January 1, December 27, Dec ember 28,
2005 2003 2002

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Income (loss) from continuing operations $.19 $.26 ($2.19)

Loss from discontinued operations ( .09)

Net income (loss) $.19 $.26 ($2.28 )
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding 11,325,626 10,716,179 10,585,503
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Income (loss) from continuing operations $.19 $.26 ($2.19)

Loss from discontinued operations ( .09)

Net income (loss) $.19 $.26 ($2.28)
Weighted average number of common and common equiva lent shares outstanding

(includes dilutive securities relating to

options of 354,186 in 2004 and 180,126 in 2003) 11,679,812 10,896,305 10,585,503

F-5

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

Accumulated

Other Additional
Common Stock Comprehensive  Paid-in
Shares Amount  Income (Loss) Capital

Balance, December 29, 2001 10,571,761 $528,588 ($484,283) $93,746,569
Issuance of stock under employee

stock purchase plan 53,410 2,671 187,885
Exercise of stock options 905 45 1,484
Translation adjustment (99,801)
Net loss
Balance, December 28, 2002 10,626,076 531,304 (584,084 ) 93,935,938
Issuance of stock under employee

stock purchase plan 39,926 1,996 129,419
Exercise of stock options 11,500 575 42,925
Issuance of restricted shares
pursuant to stock option tender 607,777 30,389 3,798,606
offer
Translation adjustment 1,140,879
Net income
Balance, December 27, 2003 11,285,279 564,264 556,795 97,906,888
Issuance of stock under employee

stock purchase plan 37,107 1,855 174,365
Exercise of stock options 61,084 3,054 209,466
Translation adjustment 179,333
Net income
Balance, January 1, 2005 11,383,470 $569,173 $736,128 $98,290,719

(Ac

(

Retained
Earnings
cumulated

Deficit) Total

(34,637,004 ) 59,246,154
131,415
43.500
3,828,995

1,140,879
2,779,153

2,779,153

(31,857,851) 67,170,096

176,220

212,520

179,333
2,206,867

2,206,867

($29,650,984) $69,945,036

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

December 28,

($24,135,930)

(99,801)

($24,235,731)

January 1, December 27,
2005 2003 2002
Net income (loss) $2,20 6,867 $2,779,153
Foreign currency translation
adjustment 17 9,333 1,140,879
Comprehensive income (loss) $2,38 6,200 $3,920,032
F-6

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

January 1, December 27, Decembe r 28,
2005 2003 200 2
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $2,206,867 $2,779,153 ($24,1 35,930 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities:
Loss on discontinued operations 9 67,065
Depreciation and amortization 1,218,547 1,223,397 1,2 79,043
Provision for allowances on accounts
receivable 8,000 305,000 2 46,000 )
Recognition of noncash portion of
compensation expense for stock
tender offer 3,828,995
Goodwill impairment 2,164,338 29,9 90,099
Deferred tax (365,634 ) (308,106 ) 2,0 22,694
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,274,580 ) (4,820,435 ) 9,6 66,894
Income tax refund receivable 3,766,585 3,0 43,508
Restricted cash (8,295,625 )
Prepaid expenses and other current )
assets 595,726 536,098 7 74,602
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,331,059 ) 845,307 6,0 74,855
Accrued payroll 1,310,255 1,093,306 (7 74,314 )
Payroll and withheld taxes 922,826 (16,820 ) (1 81,934 )
Income taxes payable (879,619 ) 1,956,518 3,5 78,189
Total adjustments (2,631,200 ) 114,220 54,6 45,497
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities ($424,333 ) $2,893,373 $30,5 09,567
F-7
The accompanying notes are an inte gral part of

these financial statement S.



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

January 1, December 27, Dece
2005 2003
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds on sale of reporting unit
Property and equipment acquired ($439,246 ) ($431,816 )
(Increase) decrease in deposits (55,200 ) 3,632
Contingent consideration (1,353,638 ) (
Net cash used in investing activities (494,446 ) (1,781,822 ) (
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net repayments of line of credit (2,400,000 ) (120,000 ) (2
Sale of stock for employee stock purchase plan 176,220 131,415
Exercise of stock options 212,520 43,500
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities (2,011,260 ) 54,915 2
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents 179,334 1,140,879
Net (decrease) increase in cash
and cash equivalents (2,750,705 ) 2,307,345
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,152,499 2,845,154
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $2,401,794 $5,152,499 $
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for:
Interest $201,101 $244,727
Income taxes (refund) 1,753,251 (3,951,320 ) 1
Acquisitions:
Fair value of assets acquired, including
contingent consideration payments 1,353,638
Cash paid, net of cash acquired $1,353,638 $
F-8
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

RCM Technologies is a premier provider of busireasd technology solutions designed to enhance axihmz the operational performance
of its customers through the adaptation and depémyraf advanced information technology and engingeservices. RCM's offices are
located in major metropolitan centers throughoutthdmerica.

The consolidated financial statements are compo$éae accounts of the Company and its subsidiaAd significant intercompany accou
and transactions have been eliminated in cons@iaathe preparation of the financial statementsanformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requiragsagement to make estimates and assumptions tleat #f€ amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompamatgs. Actual results could differ from these eaties.

Fiscal Periods

The reporting period for the Company is the Satydasest to the last day in December. Fiscal 288d represents 53 weeks ended January
1, 2005. Fiscal years 2003 and 2002 represent2iveegks ended December 27, 2003 and December @8, &pectively. The Company's
consolidated financial statements have historicafgrred to fiscal years as ending on DecembebD8ferences between the Company's
fiscal year and a calendar year have been immhtBeferences to years in this annual report retafescal years rather than calendar years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers its holdings of highly ligmidney-market instruments to be cash equivalertkeitecurities mature within 90 days
from the date of acquisition. These investmentxarged at cost, which approximates fair value.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's carrying value of financial instrutseapproximates fair value because of the natulecharacteristics of its financial
instruments. The Company does not have any offAbalaheet financial instruments. The Company doekawve derivative products in place
to manage risks related to foreign currency flutitues for its foreign operations or for intereserahanges.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company's accounts receivable are primarilyfchre trade customers. Credit is extended basezlaluation of customers' financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not regdirAccounts receivable payment terms vary andtatedin the financial statements at
amounts due from customers net of an allowancddabtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longer tih@rpayment terms are considered
past due. The Company determines its allowancebgidering a number of factors, including the léngfttime trade accounts receivable are
past due, the Company's previous loss historyctiseomer's current ability to pay its obligatiortiie Company, and the condition of the
general economy and the industry as a whole. Thapaay writes off accounts receivable when they brexancollectible, and payments
subsequently received on such receivables aretedetti the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNUED)
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost andepreciated on the straight-line method at ratesutatied to provide for retirement of assets
at the end of their estimated useful lives. Theuahrates are 20% for computer hardware and softaamvell as furniture and office
equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortizedtbeeshorter of the estimated life of the asse¢herdease term.

Goodwill

The net assets of businesses acquired, which eoeiated for as purchases, have been reflecte@iafdlir values at dates of acquisition. The
excess of acquisition costs over such net asseflésted in the consolidated balance sheets advgh. Goodwill at January 1, 2005 and
December 27, 2003 was $35,843,000 and $38,007,000.

The Company performed an impairment review in adaoce with the requirements of Statement of Firdicounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 142 for the fiscal years 2004 and 2003 and 2DQ@2ing the fourth quarters of fiscal years 200d 2002, the reviews indicated that th
were impairments of value, which resulted in a $8ition and $30.0 million charge to expense fa flscal years ended January 1, 2005 and
December 28, 2002, respectively, in order to prigpeflect the appropriate carrying value of gooliiviihe results of the 2003 impairment
testing indicated no impairment of goodwill.

Software

In accordance with the American Institute of CéatifPublic Accountants' Statement of Position ("9@B8-1, "Accounting for Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Intetige," certain costs related to the developmerpiuochase of internal-use software are
capitalized and amortized over the estimated udiédubdf the software. During the years ended Janda2005, December 27, 2003 and
December 28, 2002, the Company capitalized apprateity $226,000, $114,000 and $287,000, respectieglyoftware costs in accordance
with SOP 98-1.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordartbeSFAS No. 109 "Accounting for Income TaxesHieh requires an asset and
liability approach of accounting for income tax885AS 109 requires assessment of the likelihoo@alfzing benefits associated with defel
tax assets for purposes of determining whethefuamtian allowance is needed for such deferred s@ets. The Company and its wholly
owned U.S. subsidiaries file a consolidated fed@@me tax return.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssuddl of the Company's segments perform staffeyices. The Company's Professi
Engineering Services and Information TechnologwiBes segments also perform project services. mfogrhation Technology Services
segment also derives revenue from permanent platdiees.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNUED)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Project Services - The Company recognizes reveinusscordance with the Securities and Exchange Gesiom, Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) Number 104, "Revenue Recognition." SAB 1Giles application of U.S. generally accepted actimg principles to revenue
transactions. Project services are generally peavith a cost-plus-fixed-fee or time-and-materigidarypically, a customer will outsource a
discrete project or activity and the Company assurasponsibility for the performance of such pro@cactivity. The Company recognizes
revenues and associated costs on a gross basis/ees are provided to the customer and costmenered using its employees. The
Company, from time to time, enters into contraetpuiring the completion of specific deliverableeeTCompany recognizes revenue on these
deliverables at the time the client accepts andoygs the deliverables. In instances where prgjeatices are provided on a fixed-price basis
and the contract will extend beyond a 12-monthqaknievenue is recorded in accordance with thegefheach contract. In some instances,
revenue is billed and recorded at the time certdlastones are reached, as defined in the contraother instances, revenue is billed and
recorded based upon contractual rates per hoaddrion, some contracts contain "Performance F@msiuses) for completing a contract
under budget. Performance Fees, if any, are redomthen the contract is completed and the reventeaisonably certain of collection. Some
contracts also limit revenues and billings to maximamounts. Provision for contract losses, if anynade in the period such losses are
determined. Expenses related to contracts thaheéxieyond a 12-month period are charged to CaSenfices as incurred.

Staffing Services - Revenues derived from staffiagyices are recorded on a gross basis as seare@erformed and associated costs have
been incurred using employees of the Company.dsdltircumstances, the Company assumes the réglceptability of its employees to its
customers. In certain cases, the Company mayeutlizer companies and their employees to fulfitomer requirements. In these cases, the
Company receives an administrative fee for arragépn, billing for and collecting the billings retd to these companies. The customer is
typically responsible for assessing the work obtheompanies who have responsibility for acceptglaf their personnel to the customer.
Under these circumstances, the Company's repatethues are net of associated costs (effectivelpdministrative fee).

Permanent Placement Services - The Company eanmapent placement fees from providing permanertegpieent services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guaranteesritsapent placements on a pror
basis for 90 days. In the event a candidate isatained for the 90-day period, the Company witlyile a suitable replacement candidate. In
the event a replacement candidate cannot be lqggaee€ompany will provide a refund to the cliefh allowance for refunds, based upon
Company's historical experience, is recorded irfittencial statements. Revenues are recorded 00ss fasis as a component of revenue.

Concentration

During 2004, the Company's largest customer aceoliior 7.4% of the Company's revenues. At JanuaPPa5 the accounts receivable due
from the largest customer was $7.9 million. The @any's five and ten largest customers accounteapproximately 25.4% and 36.9%,
respectively, of the Company's revenues for 2004.

During 2003, the Company's largest customer aceolufior 22% of the Company's revenues. At DecemBgR@03 the accounts receivable
due from the largest customer was $1.7 million. Tlenpany's five and ten largest customers accodateapproximately 42% and 52%,
respectively, of the Company's revenues for 20@8véver, of the $45.1 million in revenues from thengpany's largest customer, $24.1
million represented "Pass-Through" revenues whHereCompany acted as a general contractor and swacted $24.1 million of business at
a gross margin of approximately 1.2%. If the Conypadjusted for these patig-ough revenues, its largest customer would hageunted fo
11.5% of total revenues. Similarly, the Companiy’'s &ind ten largest customers would have accodote®#t.5% and 45.6%, respectively.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNUED)
Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's foreign subsidiary uses Canadiamiccyras the functional currency. Net assets anslated at yeaend rates while revenu
and expenses are translated at average exchargeAdfustments resulting from these translatiorgeflected in "Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)" in shareholders' gqGiains and losses arising from foreign curremaggactions are reflected in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incass) and foreign currency translation adjustments
Per Share Data

Basic net income per share is calculated usingvighted-average number of common shares outstgualdiring the period. Diluted net
income per share is calculated using the weightetage number of common shares plus dilutive pialesommon shares outstanding dur
the period. Potential common shares consist okstptions that are computed using the treasuryksteethod. Dilutive securities have not
been included in the weighted average shares osele calculation of earnings per share in perafdset loss because the effect of such
securities would be anti-dilutive. Because of tteempany's capital structure, all reported earnirggsan to common shareholders and no
other assumed adjustments are necessary.

The number of common shares used to calculate badidiluted earnings per share for 2004, 20032&0& was determined as follows:

Year Ende d Year Ended Year Ended
January 1 , December December
2005 27, 2003 28, 2002
Basic average shares outstanding 11,325, 626 10,716,179 10,585,503
Dilutive effect of stock options 354, 186 180,126
Dilutive shares 11,679, 812 10,896,305 10,585,503

Options to purchase 1,183,583 shares of commok stqarices ranging from $3.00 to $7.04 per shageevoutstanding as of January 1, 2005.
There were 84,000 options not included in the datmn of common stock equivalents because thecesesprice of the options exceeded the
average market price for the year ended Janu&9QBb.

Options to purchase 1,214,916 shares of commok stqarices ranging from $3.00 to $11.93 per sharee outstanding as of December 27,
2003. There were 428,000 options not included énctidculation of common stock equivalents becdusexercise price of the options
exceeded the average market price for the yeardeDdeember 31, 2003.

Options to purchase 2,474,214 shares of commoR stqarices ranging from $3.00 to $15.31 per shaee outstanding as of December 28,
2002, but were not included in the computationibftedd EPS because of net loss incurred in 2002.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNUED)
Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock options under SFASIR3, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatiomnasnded by SFAS No. 148,
which contains a fair value-based method for vag§tock-based compensation, that measures comjmneast at the grant date based on
the fair value of the award. Compensation is tlemognized over the service period, which is usuakyvesting period. Alternatively, SFAS
No. 123 permits entities to continue accountingeimployee stock options and similar equity instrote@inder Accounting Principles Boe
(APB) Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to [ayees. Entities that continue to account forlstmations using APB Opinion 25 are
required to make pro forma disclosures of net ine@md earnings per share, as if the fair valueebamhod of accounting defined in SFAS
No. 123 had been applie

At January 1, 2005, the Company has four stockébasgloyee compensation plans. The Company acctarttse plans under the
recognition and measurement principles of APB Ni.Atcounting for Stock Issued to Employees, afated interpretations. Stock-based
employee compensation costs are not reflectedtiraraings, as all options granted under the ptahadm exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the datgraht. The following table illustrates the effect net earnings and earnings per share if
the Company had applied the fair value recognipimvisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based empla@mepensation (in thousands, except
per share amounts).

January 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Net income (loss), as reported $2 ,207 $2,779 ($24,135)

Less: stock-based compensation costs
determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of

related tax 321 500 898
Net income (loss), pro forma $1 ,886 $2,279 ($25,033)
Income (loss) per share of common stock-basic:
As reported $.19 $.26 ($2.28)
Pro forma $.16 $.21 ($2.36)
Income (loss) per share of common stock-diluted:
As reported $.19 $.26 ($2.28)
Pro forma $.16 $.21 ($2.36)
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended Jan

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNUED)

The pro-forma compensation cost using the faireddased method under SFAS No. 123 includes vahmtielated to stock options granted
since January 1, 1995 using the Black-Scholes @ftiicing Model. The weighted average fair valuegtions granted using Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model during 2004, 2003, and 2002 baen estimated using the following assumptions:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
January 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Risk-free interest rate 3.74% 3.18% 4.06%
Expected life of option 5 years 5 years 5 years

Expected stock price volatility 60% 66% 49%
Expected dividend yield - - -
Weighted-average per share

value granted $2.65 $2.29 $2.18

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Totarising expense was $667,000, $595,000, and,$8@6or the years ended January 1,
2005, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 actaply.

Use of Estimates and Uncertainties

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefh@ted amounts of assets and liabilities, reveandsexpenses and disclosure of contin
assets and liabilities. Actual results could diffem those estimates.

The Company has risk participation arrangements meispect to workers compensation and health natgance. The amounts included in
the Company's costs related to this risk participedre estimated and can vary based on changesimptions, the Company's claims
experience or the providers included in the assediesurance programs.

The Company can be affected by a variety of fadgtmteiding uncertainty relating to the performané¢¢he U.S. economy, competition,
demand for the Company's services, adverse litigand claims and the hiring, training and reteantbkey employees.

New Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Stand&aksrd ("FASB") released Interpretation No. 46 Goiggtion of Variable Interest Entiti
("FIN 46") which requires that all primary beneéidies of Variable Interest Entities (VIE) consotig#hat entity. FIN 46 is effective
immediately for VIE created after January 31, 28648 to VIE in which an enterprise obtains an irgeadter that date. It applies in the first
fiscal year or interim period beginning after Jude 2003 to VIE in which an enterprise holds aafale interest it acquired before February 1,
2003. In December 2003, the FASB published a rewitd FIN 46 ("FIN 46R") to clarify some of the pisions of the interpretation and to
defer the effective date of implementation for agrientities. Under the guidance of FIN 46R, esgithat do not have interests in structures
that are commonly referred to as special purpostesnare required to apply the provisions of ithterpretation in financial statements for
periods ending after March 14, 2004. The Compamsdmt have interests in special purpose entitidstee adoption of FIN 46R did not
have a material impact on the Company's consolid@atancial position, results of operations or cfistvs.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uiard issued SFAS No.

123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, whicheadds the accounting for employee stock option&SI¥o. 123R eliminates the ability

to account for shared-based compensation trangaaiging APB 25 and generally would require instiad such transactions be accounted
for using a fair value-based method. SFAS No. 1aBR requires that tax benefits associated withelshare-based payments be classified a:
financing activities in the statement of cash fi@ather than operating activities as currently paedi SFAS No. 123R becomes effective for
interim or annual periods beginning after June2D®5. Accordingly, the Company is required to apgpiBAS No. 123R beginning fiscal
guarter ended October 1, 2005. SFAS No. 123R o#fikesnative methods of adopting this final rule tihe present time, the Company has

yet determined which alternative method it will u

2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In August 2002, the Company sold a reporting unthe commercial services business segment for,8Q00which resulted in a loss of $1.6
million ($967,000 net of income tax benefit of $620@0) for the year ended December 28, 2002, or §e®@%hare. In accordance with SFAS
144, the loss is presented as a loss from disagedimperations in the statement of operationdi®rear in the period ended December 28,
2002.

3. ACQUISITIONS

In connection with certain acquisitions, the Compasas obligated to pay contingent consideratiothéoselling shareholders upon the
acquired businesses achieving certain earningsttaoyer periods ranging from 2-3 years. The Dete@onsideration and Earnouts, when
paid, were recorded as additional purchase corasidarand added to goodwill on the consolidatedmze sheet. The deferred consideration
and earnout payments made for businesses acquefet2001 were made in years following the yeawliich the acquisitions occurred.
Cash used in investing activities in the ConsoéideBtatements of Cash Flows reflects the year inhwthe cash outlay occurred.

As of January 1, 2005, the Company does not hayéumre contingent obligations for earnout consadien.
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are comprised of the fohowi

Janua ry 1, December 27,
20 05 2003
Equipment and furniture $1, 967,137 $2,154,422
Computers and systems 7, 007,352 6,843,934
Leasehold improvements 598,057 566,583
9, 572,546 9,564,939
Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization 5, 153,519 4,435,164
$4, 419,027 $5,129,775

The Company writes off fully depreciatedassets gaeln.In fiscal 2004 and 2003 the write offs we48& 000 and $117,000, respectively.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

SFAS 142 requires the Company to perform a goodmjllairment test on at least an annual basis. Bqrgses of its 2004, 2003 and 2002
annual impairment testing, the Company determiheddir value of its reporting units using relatimarket multiples for comparable
businesses, as of November 30, 2004, 2003 and 2&f}ictively as well as forecasted operating irecand cash flows of each reporting t
as well prospects for future recovery. The analgsigaled that goodwill, amounting to approximat2y2 million and $30.0 million ($24.7
million after taxes) had been impaired for thedisgears ended January 1, 2005 and December 28, g&pectively and therefore, would |
be recoverable through future profitable operatidiese impairment charges were incurred to btiegcarrying value of goodwill associated
with each reporting unit in line with estimatedute value. The aforementioned impairments werefrting units within the Company's
Information Technology business segment. The resiithe 2003 impairment testing indicated no inmpant to goodwill. There can be no
assurance that future tests of goodwill impairnveilitnot result in further impairment charges.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfer years ended January 1, 2005 and December @3,a28 as follows (in thousands):

Infor mation Professional Commercial
Techn ology Engineering Services To tal
Balance as of December 28, 2002 $29,126 $7,528 $36,654
Goodwill acquired during the year 1,353 1,353
Balance as of December 27, 2003 30,479 7,528 38,007
Goodwill impairment losses (2,164 ) (2,164 )
Balance as of January 1, 2005 $28,315 $7,528 $35,843

The following table reflects the components of ingfible assets, excluding goodwill (in thousands):

January 1, 2005 December 27, 2003
Gross Gross
Carrying A ccumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Am ortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets
Non-compete agreement $311 $311 $311 $242

6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist ébltbwing at January 1, 2005 and December 273200

Janu ary 1, December 27,
2 005 2003
Accounts payable - trade $4 ,024,164 $7,216,885
Reserve for litigation 8 ,218,813 8,357,151
Total $12 ,242,977 $15,574,036
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

7. LINE OF CREDIT

On May 31, 2002, the Company and its subsidiarmsred into an amended and restated loan agreewigioh was further amended on July
27, 2004, with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, adstiative agent for a syndicate of banks, whichvtes for a $25.0 million Revolving
Credit Facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility"Availability under the Revolving Credit Facility ilased on 80% of the aggregate amount of
accounts receivable as to which not more than 98 Have elapsed since the date of the originali@@v@orrowings under the Revolving
Credit Facility bear interest at one of two altéiverates, as selected by the Company at eacériremrtal borrowing. These alternatives are:
(i) LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate), plus dpgble margin, or (ii) the agent bank's prime rate

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge of
the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolving Créditility also contains various financial and narahcial covenants, such as restrictions on
the Company's ability to pay dividends.

The Revolving Credit Facility expires in August 200 he weighted average interest rates under theliieg Credit Facility for the years
ended January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003 we9&3and 3.67%, respectively. The amounts outstgnatiler the Revolving Credit
Facility at January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2082 $4.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively. Jd¢nuary 1, 2005, the Company had
availability for additional borrowing under the Réwing Credit Facility of $20.0 million.

8. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Shares Reserved

Shares of unissued common stock were reservetiddotiowing purposes:

January 1, December 27,

2005 2003
Exercise of options outstanding 1,183, 583 1,214,916
Future grants of options 994, 236 1,074,287
Total 2,177, 819 2,289,203

Incentive Stock Option Plans
1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan (the 1992 Plan)

The 1992 Plan, approved by the Company's stockieldeApril 1992, and amended in April 1998, praddfor the issuance of up to 500,000
shares of common stock per individual to officelisgctors and key employees of the Company arslitsidiaries, through February 13,
2002, at which time the 1992 Plan expired. Theamstissued were intended to be incentive stoclongtpursuant to Section 422A of the
Internal Revenue Code. The option terms were nohitted to exceed ten years and the exercise praenot permitted to be less than 100%
of the fair market value of the shares at the tifhgrant. The Compensation Committee of the Bo&fdiectors determined the vesting
period at the time of grant for each of these o@id\t January 1, 2005, options to purchase 87s8abes of common stock were outstanding.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

8. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)
Incentive Stock Option Plans (Continued)
1994 Non-employee Directors Stock Option Plan (thE994 Plan)

The 1994 Plan, approved by the Company's stockioldeMay 1994, and amended in April 1998, provifadssuance of up to 110,000
shares of common stock to non-employee directotseofCompany through February 19, 2004, at whitie the 1994 Plan expired. Options
granted under the 1994 Plan were granted at faikeh&alue at the date of grant, and the exerdisgiions is contingent upon service as a
director for a period of one year. Options graniader the 1994 Plan terminate when an optionea=sgase a Director of the Company. At
January 1, 2005, options to purchase 70,000 sb&msmmon stock were outstanding.

1996 Executive Stock Option Plan (the 1996 Plan)

The 1996 Plan, approved by the Company's stocki®ldeAugust 1996 and amended in April 1999, presitbr issuance of up to 1,250,000
shares of common stock to officers and key emplopéehe Company and its subsidiaries through Igre2006. Options are generally
granted at fair market value at the date of graihé Compensation Committee of the Board of Directi@termines the vesting period at the
time of grant. At January 1, 2005, options to paseh922,980 shares of common stock are availabfatioe grants, and options to purchase
245,645 shares of common stock were outstanding.

2000 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the 2000 Plan)

The 2000 Plan, approved by the Company's stockteldeéApril 2001, provides for issuance of up t6A0,000 shares of the Company's
common stock to officers and key employees of thm@any and its subsidiaries or to consultants awésars utilized by the Company. The
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directory maard incentive stock options or non-qualifiedlcgtoptions, as well as stock
appreciation rights, and determines the vestinggeat the time of grant. At January 1, 2005, aptito purchase 70,556 shares of common
stock are available for future grants, and optitongurchase 780,083 shares of common stock westamating.

Transactions related to all stock options are Hgvis:

Year Weig hted- Year Weighted- Year Weighted-
Ended Ave rage Ended Average Ended Average
January 1, Exe rcise December 27, Exercise December 28, Exercise
2005 Pr ice 2003 Price 2002 Price
Outstanding options 1,214,916 $3.85 2,474,214 $7.15 2,41 5,780 $7.53
At beginning of year
Granted 149,000 4.86 220,000 3.91 32 5,500 4.57
Cancellations (119,249) 3.49 (1,467,798) 9.51 (26 6,161) 6.82
Exercised (61,084 ) 3.48 (11,500) 6.93 (905) 3.06
Outstanding options 1,183,583 $4.03 1,214,916 $3.85 2,47 4,214 $7.15
At end of year
Exercisable options
At end of year 766,500 432,500 1,66 3,715
Option grant price $3.00 $3.00 $3.00
Per share to $7.04 to $11.93 to$ 15.31
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

8. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)
Incentive Stock Option Plans (Continued)

The following table summarizes information about st ock options outstanding
at January 1, 2005:

Weighted-Average

Range of Number of Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price
Prices Options

$3.00 - $4.29 699,683 7.16 years $3.45

$4.70 - $7.04 483,900 6.77 years $4.87

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company implemented an Employee Stock Purdbiase(the "Purchase Plan™) with shareholder apprefi@ctive January 1, 2002.
Under the Purchase Plan, employees meeting caytaiific employment qualifications are eligibleptrticipate and can purchase shares of
Common Stock semi-annually through payroll dedungtiat the lower of 85% of the fair market valuere stock at the commencement or
end of the offering period. The purchase plan pergligible employees to purchase common stoclutitrgayroll deductions for up to 10%
of qualified compensation. During the year endediday 1, 2005, there were 37,107 shares issued tiel®urchase Plan for net proceeds of
$176,220. As of January 1, 2005, there were 297s888s available for issuance under the PurcHase P

9. STOCK OPTION TENDER OFFER

In order to enhance long-term value for the shddshe of the Company, reduce the number of optiaristanding and improve the
Company's ability to retain and provide incentit@employees and directors, on September 30, 2063;ompany made a tender offer to
exchange stock options with a strike price of $0@reater for shares of restricted stock and.cash

Upon expiration of the tender offer on November2@03, option holders participating in the tenderoreceived in the aggregate 607,777
shares of restricted stock having an aggregates\afl$3.8 million ($6.30 per share) as well as aasfsideration of $2.6 million, which was
equal to 67% of the value of the restricted comstogk. Participants surrendered options to purchg®7,973 shares of common stock,
which represented 100% of all options eligible ¢éosirrendered. The Company recorded a charge Dhdiion ($4.0 million after-tax) to
compensation expense in the fourth quarter of 20@8to the tender offer.

Provided the Company has U.S. Federal taxable irdarfuture periods, the exchange offer will beragpnately cash flow neutral to the
Company as the combined tax benefits (both theevaldhe restricted common stock issued and thie caissideration paid are tax deductible
expenses) will be approximately equal the actush @mnsideration paid to employees and directors.

All shares of restricted stock issued pursuantéoténder offer were fully vested on the stock gdate, but are subject to transfer restrictis
The transfer restrictions lapsed on the first aersary of the stock grant date, November 14, 2004.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

10. RETIREMENT PLANS
Profit Sharing Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) profit sharing gtarthe benefit of eligible employees. The 401(lgmpincludes a cash or deferred
arrangement pursuant to Section 401(k) of the haleRevenue Code sponsored by the Company to meligible employees an opportunity
to defer compensation and have such deferred asmoontributed to the 401(k) plan on a pre-tax hasibject to certain limitations. The
Company at the discretion of the Board of Directoesy make contributions of cash to match defewhtompensation by participants.
Contributions charged to operations by the Comganyears ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 200®ecember 28, 2002 were
$111,000, $91,000 and $0, respectively.

Nonqualified Defined Compensation Plan

The Company implemented with shareholder approvareualified deferred compensation plan, effeclizeuary 1, 2002, for officers and
certain other management employees. The plan aflomsmpensation deferrals for its participantd ardiscretionary company contributir
subject to approval of the Board of Directors. Adanuary 1, 2005, the fair value of the assetd imefrust under the deferred compensation
plan was $677,194. The Board of Directors apprdtiedermination of the plan as of January 14, 28 directed the distribution of the
assets in the plan to the participants. The fimgtibution of the plan assets of $661,981, asaolary 14, 2005, was made on February 4,
2005.

11. COMMITMENTS
Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with isf Executive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt ¢:Mopyt"), which currently
provides for an annual base salary of $475,00008mer customary benefits. In addition, the agreerpeovides that Mr. Kopyt's annual boi
is based on EBITDA, defined as earnings beforedstetaxes, depreciation and amortization. Asaofidry 1, 2005, the agreement expire
February 28, 2008. The agreement is for a roll@rgntof three years, which automatically extend$ig@ar for an additional one-year period
on February 28 of each year. The employment agneeiméerminable by the Company upon Mr. Kopyt'atteor disability, or for "good and
severance cause"”, as defined in the agreement.

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with its Chief Executive Officer, Leon Kogy#r. Kopyt") amended and restated
as of March 18, 1997 (the "Benefits Agreement"ysBant to the Benefits Agreement, following a CheaimgControl (as defined therein), the
remaining term of Mr. Kopyt's employment is extethdier five years (the "Extended Term"). If Mr. Kdfsyemployment is terminated
thereafter by the Company other than for causbydvir. Kopyt for good reason (including, among ottiéngs, a material change in Mr.
Kopyt's salary, title, reporting responsibilitiesaochange in office location which requires Mr.ggbto relocate), then the following
provisions take effect: the Company is obligateddg Mr. Kopyt a lump sum equal to his salary aodus for the remainder of the Extended
Term; and the Company shall be obligated to payitaKopyt the amount of any excise tax associatét the benefits provided to Mr. Koy
under the Benefits Agreement. If such a terminaliad taken place as of January 1, 2005, Mr. Komytldrhave been entitled to cash
payments of approximately $3.2 million (represemtalary and excise tax payments).
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

11. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, dated June 10, 2002, (the "Severancee@gient”). The agreement provides
for certain payments to be made to Mr. Kopyt andfie continuation of Mr. Kopyt's employee benefiitsa specified time after his service
with the Company is terminated other than "for eglias defined in the Severance Agreement. Amaquantable to Mr. Kopyt under the
Severance Agreement would be offset and reducethpyamounts received by Mr. Kopyt after his terrtioraof employment under his
current employment and termination benefits agredspevhich are supplemented and not supersedduehyaverance Agreement. If Mr.
Kopyt had been terminated as of January 1, 20@5, timder the terms of the Severance Agreemengféerdoffsetting any amounts that
would have been received under his current employiaued termination benefits agreements, he wowe ha&en entitled to cash payment:
approximately $1.3 million, inclusive of employeenefits.

Operating Leases

The Company leases office facilities and variousiggent under non-cancelable leases expiring dwsuwdates through June 2012. Certain
leases are subject to escalation clauses basedchpages in various factors. The minimum futureuahoperating lease commitments for
leases with non-cancelable terms in excess of eag gxclusive of operating escalation chargesasifellows:

Year ending December 31, Amount
2005 $2,455,000
2006 1,919,000
2007 1,311,000
2008 903,000
2009 887,000
Thereafter 2,078,000
Total $9,553,000

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Janu&@Qb, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 863 %000, $2,666,000 and
$3,245,000, respectively.

The Company subleases space at various officeidosatinder cancelable lease agreements. Duringl 2894, 2003 and 2002 revenues of
approximately $109,000, $279,000 and $105,000 ecsly, were recognized under these leasing genaents.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A director of the Company is a shareholder in afiam that has rendered various legal servicehi¢oGompany. Fees paid to the law firm
have not been significant.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

13. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense (credit) afelws:

Year End ed Year Ended Year Ended
January 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Current
Federal $3 0,000
Foreign 93 9,869 $1,050,056 $974,073
96 9,869 1,050,056 974,073
Deferred
Federal (31 0,789) 93,791 (6,246,119)
State and local 5 4,845) 16,551
(36 5,634) 110,342 (6,246,119)
Total $60 4,235 $1,160,398 ($5,272,046)

The income tax provisions reconciled to the tax potad at the statutory Federal rate was:

2005 2003 2002

Tax at statutory rate (credit) 34. 0% 34.0% (34.0)%
State income taxes, net of Federal

income tax benefit 6. 6
Foreign income tax effect 1. 7 5 3.3
Deductible amortization (8. 4) (5.9)
Change in valuation allowance (26. 5)
Non-deductible charges 11. 3 15.7
Other, net 2. 8 9 (2.9)
Total income tax expense 21. 5% 29.5% (17.9)%

At January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003, deféasedssets and liabilities consist of the following

Deferred tax assets: 2005 2003
Net operating loss carryforward $982 ,503 $936,611
Allowance for doubtful accounts 744 ,800 701,330
Reserves and accruals 149 ,246 211,762
Litigation reserve 3,219 ,560 3,450,000
5,096 ,109 5,299,703
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expense benefit (132 ,102)
4,964 ,007 5,299,703
Valuation allowance (701,330)
Net deferred tax assets $4,964 ,007 $4,598,373
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

13. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Prior to year ended December 27, 2003, the Compasyad two consecutive loss years. For each ofethies in the two-year period ended
January 1, 2005, the Company has had profitablesy@herefore, the Company has determined thaluatian allowance for deferred tax
assets is no longer required as of January 1, 2005.

At January 1, 2005, the Company had a net operisggcarryforward ("NOL") for U.S. Federal Incofax purposes of approximately $2.5
million. The Company can utilize the NOL to off$ature U.S. consolidated federal taxable incomartter to utilize the NOL in fiscal year
2005, the Company would have to generate approgign@8.0 million of operating income. The NOL am&ynif unused, would expire in the
year 2022

14. INTEREST EXPENSE, NET OF INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense, net of interest income consisitée following:

January 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Interest expense ($536,099) ($382 ,568) ($770,404)
Interest income 61,679 68 ,077 598,504
($474,420) ($314 ,491) ($171,900)

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company adopted SFAS 131, "Disclosures abayn8ets of an Enterprise and Related InformatiofAS 131"), which establishes
standards for companies to report information alopetrating segments, geographic areas and majmmeess. The adoption of SFAS 131
no effect on the Company's consolidated finanaaitmon, consolidated results of operations orillggy. The accounting policies of each
segment are the same as those described in theayrofrsignificant accounting policies (see Note 1)

The Company uses earnings before interest and (agesating income) to measure segment profit. Sagmperating income includes
selling, general and administrative expenses dyrettributable to that segment as well as chafgeallocating corporate costs to each of the
operating segments. The following tables refleetréssults of the segments consistent with the Cagipananagement system (in thousands):
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15. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information Professional Commercial
Fiscal 2004 Technology Engineering Services Corporate Total
Revenue $92,907 $51,173 $25,198 $169,278
Operating expenses (1) 88,613 48,396 25,626 162,635
Impairment of goodwill 2,164 2,164
EBITDA (loss) (1) (2) 2,130 2,827 (428) 4,479
Depreciation 628 407 115 1,150
Amortization of intangibles 20 43 5 68
Operating income 1,482 2,327 (548) 3,261
Interest expense, net of
interest income 261 144 70 475
Gain on foreign currency
transactions (25) (25)
Income taxes (benefit) 262 475 (133) 604
Net income $959 $1,733 ($485) $2,207
Total assets $48,556 $23,275 $6,643 $19,627 $98,101
Capital expenditures $17 $44 $5 $373 $439
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information Professional ~ Commercial
Fiscal 2003 Technology Engineering Services Corporate Total
Revenue j$:I00,872 $86,696 $19,037 ng-aé:éOS
Operating expenses (1) 93,116 82,838 18,614 194,568
Compensation expense
for stock option tender offer 500 486 89 5,617 6,692
EBITDA (loss) (1) (2) 7,256 3,372 334 (5,617 ) 5,345
Depreciation 595 526 71 1,192
Amortization of intangibles 13 15 3 31
Operating income 6,648 2,831 260 (5,617 ) 4,122
Interest expense, net of
interest income 153 132 29 314
Gain on foreign currency
transactions (132 ) (132 )
Income taxes (benefit) 1,914 834 68 (1,655 ) 1,161
Net income $4,581 $1,997 $163 ($3,962 ) $2,779
Total assets $49,866 $21,330 $5,749 $22,759 $99,704
Capital expenditures $110 $156 $25 $141 $432
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Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information  Prof

Fiscal 2002 Technology Engi
Revenue $111,270
Operating expenses (1) 103,190

Unusual charge

Impairment of goodwill 29,990
EBITDA (loss) (1) (2) (21,910
Depreciation 793
Amortization of intangibles 17

Operating income(loss)(1)(3) (22,720)

Interest expense, net of
interest income 102

Gain on foreign currency
transactions

Loss on discontinued

operations

Income taxes (benefit) (2,848 )
Net income ($19,974 )
Total assets $46,375
Capital expenditures $101

(1) Operating expenses excludes depreciation and

(2) EBITDA means earnings before interest income
depreciation, amortization, and income taxes
as presented, represents a useful measure of
of our operating activities, as it reflects
the impact of certain non-cash and unusual ¢
also used by our creditors in assessing debt
understand that, although security analysts
the evaluation of companies, it is not neces
similarly titled captions of other companies
inconsistencies in the method of calculation
an alternative to cash flow provided by oper
measure of liquidity, as an alternative to n
of our operating performance, nor as an alte
measure of performance in conformity with ge
principles.

(3) The operating results of a reporting unit so
excluded from operating income of the Commer
Segment for all periods presented.

essional Commercial

neering Services Corporate Tota
$55,979 $19,402 $18
51,275 18,841 17
9,718
2
4,704 561 (9,718) (2
393 72
4
4,307 489 (9,718) (2
52 18
@a7)
967
1,708 (184) (3,304) (
$2,564 ($312) ($6,414) (%2
$19,929 $4,913 $17,223 $8
$162 $364

amortization.

, interest expense,

. We believe that EBITDA,
assessing the performance
our earnings trends without
harges or income. EBITDA is
covenant compliance. We
frequently use EBITDA in
sarily comparable to other
due to potential

. EBITDA is not intended as
ating activities as a

et income as an indicator
rnative to any other

nerally accepted accounting

Id in August 2002 are
cial Services Business
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following reconciles consolidated operatingsltsthe Company's pretax loss (in thousands):

Ja nuary 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Consolidated operating income (loss) $3,261 $4,122 ($27,642)
Interest expense, net of interest income (475) (314) (172)
Gain on foreign currency transactions 25 132 17

Consolidated pretax income (loss) from
continuing operations $2,811 $3,940 ($27,797)

The Company derives a majority of its revenue fammpanies headquartered in the United Statessdalfyear 2002, two customers
accounted for 12.2% and 6.6%, respectively, olGbmpany's revenues. During 2003, the Company'ssastomer accounted for 22% of
the Company's revenues. However, of the $45.1aniilh 2003 revenues from that customer, $24.1 oniliepresented "pass-through”
revenues where the Company acted as a generahctamtrlf the Company adjusted for these pass-girsavenues, its largest customer
would have accounted for 11.5% of total revenueséistal year 2004, the Company's largest cust@oeounted for 7.4% of the Company's
revenues. Revenues from Canadian operations foretlues ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 200Becember 28, 2002 were $20.0
million, $56.4 million and $31.1 million, respeactiy.

The Company is domiciled in the United States amdégments operate in the United States and CaRatlanues and fixed assets by
geographic area for the years ended January 1, B@ember 27, 2003, and December 28, 2002 aa@law$ (in thousands):

Janu ary 1, December 27, December 28,
2 005 2003 2002
Revenues
United States $149,247 $150,245 $155,586
Canada 20,030 56,360 31,065

$169,277 $206,605 $186,651

Fixed Assets

United States $4,210 $4,788 $5,403
Canada 209 342 487
$4,419 $5,130 $5,890

F-27



RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDTED)

Year Ended January 1, 2005

Dilut ed
Gross Net Net Income (Loss)
Sales Profit Income (Loss) Per Shar e(a)
1st Quarter $41,272,729 $10,027,438 $795,953 $.07
2nd Quarter 45,348,773 10,699,339 869,298 .08
3rd Quarter 40,933,476 9,963,938 765,514 .07
4th Quarter 41,722,512 10,283,130 (223,898) (.02)
Total $169,277,490 $40,973,845 $2,206,867 $.19
Year Ended December 27, 2003
Dilu ted
Gross Net Net Incom e (Loss)
Sales Profit Income (Loss) Per Sha re (a)
1st Quarter $50,650,469 $10,805,060 $1,353,948 $.13
2nd Quarter 55,218,914 11,393,816 1,935,458 .18
3rd Quarter 55,224,390 11,544,524 1,816,652 17
4th Quarter 45,511,415 10,851,286 (2,326,905) (.22)
Total $206,605,188 $44,594,686 $2,779,153 $.26

(a) Each quarterly amount is based on separate calc ulations of weighted
average shares outstanding.

17. CONTINGENCIES

In late 1998, two shareholders who were formerficefs and directors of the Company filed suit agathe Company alleging wrongful
termination of their employment, failure to makegug&ed severance payments, wrongful conduct byCimpany in connection with the grant
of stock options, and wrongful conduct by the Conypeesulting in the nonestiture of their option grants. The complainbaddieged that th
Company wrongfully limited the number of sharesh&f Company's common stock that could have beehbsothe plaintiffs under a
Registration Rights Agreement entered into in cating with the underlying acquisition transactiamguant to which the plaintiffs became
shareholders of the Company. The claim under thgsiRation Rights Agreement sought the differenetveen the amount for which
plaintiffs could have sold their RCM shares durihg 12-month period ended March 11, 1999, butHeralleged wrongful limitation on their
sales, and the amount for which the plaintiffs gbkeir shares during that period and thereafter.
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17. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The claim relating to the wrongful termination bétemployment of one of the plaintiffs and therokof both plaintiffs concerning the grant
of stock options were resolved in binding arbitratin early 2002. A trial on the remaining clainmsronenced on December 2, 2002 and a
verdict was returned on January 24, 2003. On thiensl by both plaintiffs concerning the alleged vgfuh limitation by the Company of the
number of shares that the plaintiffs could seliimlyithe 12-month period ended March 11, 1999, digeawarding damages of $7.6 million
against the Company was returned. On June 23, 200%;al judge denied the Company's post-triatioms that challenged the jury verdict
and upheld the verdict. On August 4, 2003, thé juidge entered a judgment in favor of the plafatfbr $7.6 million in damages and awar:
plaintiffs $172,000 in post-verdict pre-judgmenteirest. Post-judgment interest will continue toraemn the damages portion of the
judgment at the rate of 3% per annum in 2(

The Company has appealed to the Appellate Divisidhe Superior Court of New Jersey from, and olgtdia stay pending appeal of, that
judgment. In order to secure the stay, the Compaage a cash deposit in lieu of bond of $8.3 millith the Trust Fund of the Superi

Court of New Jersey. This deposit is recorded ssioted cash on the consolidated balance sheetamd interest at a rate that approximates
the daily federal funds rate. The plaintiffs havess-appealed from the Court's denial of pre-vémhejudgment interest on the damages
portion of the August 4, 2003 judgment and from@wairt's refusal to grant judgment as a matteawftb one of the plaintiffs on his claim

for severance pay in the amount of $240,000 pliesést. The briefing phase of the appeal was cdedun April 2004 and oral argument v
heard on February 15, 2005. The timing of a rubnghe appeal cannot be predicted at this time.

In connection with this litigation, the Company aced $9.7 million of litigation charges at DecemB&y 2002, which included the jury aws
of $7.6 million, professional fees of $1.1 milliand an estimate of $1.0 million for attorney feed pre-judgment interest. As of January 1,
2005, the accrued litigation reserve was $8.2 amillin addition, in November 2002 the Company bhawyit in the Superior Court of New
Jersey on professional liability claims againstatterneys and law firms who served as its couinsttle above-described acquisition
transaction and in its subsequent dealings wittptaiatiffs concerning their various relationshipgh the Company resulting from that
transaction. In its lawsuit against the former s®inthe Company is seeking complete indemnificatlg of its costs and counsel fees
incurred in defending itself against the claimshaf plaintiffs; (2) any sums for which the Compasyltimately determined to be liable to the
plaintiffs; and (3) its costs and counsel fees irediin the prosecution of the legal malpracticgoadtself. That litigation has been
temporarily stayed in the Law Division at the resjusf the defendants until at least April 4, 200%ile/the appeal of the underlying action
goes forward in the Appellate Division of the SupeCourt.

The Company is also subject to other pending Ipgadeedings and claims that arise from time to fimthe ordinary course of its business,
which may or may not be covered by insurance.

The litigation and other claims previously noted anbject to inherent uncertainties and managesnéetv of these matters may change in
the future. Were an unfavorable outcome to octaret exists the possibility of a material advenspact on the Company's consolidated
financial position and the consolidated resultspérations for the period in which the effect beesmeasonably estimable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimleets of RCM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada catjpm) and Subsidiaries as of
January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003 and thedatansolidated statements of operations, changasareholders' equity, comprehensive
income (loss) and cash flows for each of the tlyesers in period ended January 1, 2005 (53 weekaeggks and 52 weeks, respectively).
These consolidated financial statements are tipnshility of the Company's management. Our resjdlity is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based oaumlits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotieolidated financial statements are

of material misstatement. An audit includes exangnbn a test basis, evidence supporting the ara@ntt disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assgdbe accounting principles used and signifiesmiimates made by management, as well ac
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@rmaWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the consolidated financial posi
of RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries as ofiday 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003, and the ddasad results of its operations anc
cash flows for each of the fiscal years in theehyear period ended January 1, 2005, in conforwiity accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of fognain opinion on the basic consolidated financiteshents taken as a whole. The
Schedules | and Il are presented for purposesdifiadal analysis and are not a required part eftthsic consolidated financial statements.
These schedules have been subjected to the auplitegdures applied in the audit of the basic cidesed financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respdntselation to the basic consolidated financiatsments taken as a whole.

/sl Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Phi | adel phi a, Pennsyl vani a
February 18, 2005
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SCHEDULE |

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
BALANCE SHEET
January 1, 2005 and December 27, 2003

ASSETS
January 1, December 27 ,
2005 2003
Current assets
Prepaid expenses and other assets $29,549 $29, 165
Other assets
Long-term receivables from affiliates 70,020,126 67,235, 411
Total assets $70,049,675 $67,264, 576
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
January 1, December 27 ,
2005 2003
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $104,639 $94, 480
Shareholders' equity
Common stock 569,173 564, 264
Foreign currency translation adjustment 736,128 556, 795
Additional paid in capital 98,290,719 97,906, 888
Accumulated deficit (29,650,984) (31,857, 851)
Total shareholders' equity 69,945,036 67,170, 096
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $70,049,675 $67,264, 576

The "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement®R©M Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries are argnal part of these statements.
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SCHEDULE |

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

J anuary 1, December 27, December 28,
2005 2003 2002
Operating expenses
Administrative $633,198 $464,424 $1,753,587
Operating loss (633,198) (464,424) (1,753,587)

Management fee income 633,198 464,424 1,753,587

Income before income (loss) in subsidiaries

Equity in earnings (share in loss)
of subsidiaries 2,206,867 2,779,153  (24,135,930)

Net income (loss) $2,206,867  $2,779,153  ($24,135,930)
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SCHEDULE |

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

January 1, December 27, Decemb er 28,
2005 2003 20 02
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $2,206,867 $2,779,153 (%24 ,135,930)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net ¢ ash provided by operating
activities:
Recognition of equity compensation 3,828,995
(Equity in) share in deficiency in assets (2,779,153
of subsidiaries (2,206,867) ) 24 ,135,930
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other assets (384) (22,656) (3,539)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,158 (185,665) 229,572
(2,197,093) 841,521 24 ,361,963
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,774 3,620,674 226,033
Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease in deposits
Increase in long-term
receivables from subsidiaries (577,847) (4,936,468) (318,317)
Net cash used in investing activities (577,847) (4,936,468) (318,317)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Sale of stock for employee stock purchase plan 176,220 131,415 190,556
Exercise of stock options 212,520 43,500 1,529
Net cash provided by financing activities 388,740 174,915 192,085
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 179,333 1,140,879 (99,801)
Net increase in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ $ $

The "Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementfR @M Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries are aggiatl part of these statements.
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SCHEDULE II

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

Column A C olumn B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Ba lance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Be ginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts D eduction Period

Year Ended January 1, 2005

Allowance for doubtful

accounts on trade

receivables $ 1,854,000 $436,000 $428,000 $1,862,000
Year Ended December 27, 2003

Allowance for doubtful

accounts on trade

receivables $ 1,549,000 $692,000 $387,000 $1,854,000
Year Ended December 28, 2002

Allowance for doubtful

accounts on trade
receivables $ 1,795,000 $1,941,000 $2,187,000 $1,549,000
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Exhibit 10 (o)
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Compensation Arrangements for Named Executive Offiers

Brian A. Delle Donne. Chief Operating Officer. MBelle Donne is employed by the Company on an dthaisis pursuant to an oral
agreement. In addition to standard medical, diggbiife insurance, 401(k) and employee stock irtoae benefits available to all eligible
employees, he is eligible for the Executive MedBapplementary Plan available to the named exexofiicers, the Executive Stock Option
Plan available to officers and key employees anduda allowance available to certain middle managed above. Mr. Belle Donne received
a base salary of $300,000 in 2004. His bonus ietas a percentage of divisional Information Tedbgy net operating income above a
certain threshold targets.

Stanton Remer. Executive Vice President & ChiefRuial Officer. Mr. Remer is employed by the Compan an atwill basis pursuant to ¢
oral agreement. In addition to standard medicahldllity, life insurance, 401(k) and employee stowentive benefits available to all eligible
employees, he is eligible for the Executive MedBapplementary Plan available to the named exexofiicers, the Executive Stock Option
Plan available to officers and key employees andwo allowance available to certain middle managed above. Mr. Remer received a |
salary of $200,000 in 2004. His bonus is compensateording to a Schedule of Compensation apprbydtle Compensation Committee on
December 17, 1997, pursuant to which the Compapy @dbonus of .002 of the Company's EBITDA, defimsaarnings before income ta:
depreciation and amortization, on a consolidatesisbaithin 60 days following the close of the fisgaar. A further bonus of .002 of

EBITDA is payable to Mr. Remer on a discretionaagis.

Rocco Campanelli. Executive Vice President. Mr. @anelli is employed by the Company on an at-wilisgursuant to an oral agreement.
In addition to standard medical, disability, lifesurance, 401(k) and employee stock incentive litsrefailable to all eligible employees, h
eligible for the Executive Medical SupplementargriPavailable to the named executive officers, thechtive Stock Option Plan available to
officers and key employees and an auto allowanaéatble to certain middle managers and above. Mmg@anelli received a base salary of
$175,000 in 2004. His bonus is based on a percemtdivisional Professional Engineering net opgagaincome above a certain threshold
targets.

Kevin D. Miller. Senior Vice President. Mr. Millés employed by the Company on an at-will basis yams to an oral agreement. In addition
to the standard medical, disability, life insurarg@l1(k) and employee stock incentive benefitslatsbe to all eligible employees, he is
eligible for the Executive Medical SupplementargriPavailable to the named executive officers, tkechtive Stock Option Plan available to
officers and key employees and an auto allowanaéadble to certain middle managers and above. MiteMeceived a base salary of
$200,000 in 2004. He is eligible for a discretignaonus.



Exhibit 10 (p)
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Compensation Arrangements for Directors
Directors who are RCM Technologies, Inc employgesnat compensated for their services as directors.

Nor-employee directors, except as set forth belowh eaceives $24,000 in annual compensation for serwn the Board, payable in equal
monthly installments in cash.

In addition, each non-employee director receives0§yayable in cash for each in-person meetingefih Board attended by that director,
and $300 for each meeting of a committee (in exoéfsur meetings per year of that committee), Wkeinperson or telephonic, attended
that director.

Norman S. Berson, one of the -employee directors, is of counsel to a law firmttiiom time to time performs services for the Camp
Fees paid by the Company to this law firm are mgriicant or material. Nevertheless, Mr. Bersos kaluntarily declined to accept
compensation for his service on the Board.



EXHIBIT 11

COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Years Ended January 1, 2005, December 27, 2003 aDdcember 28, 2002

January 1, December 27, Decembe
2005 2003 200
Diluted earnings (loss)
Net income (loss) applicable to common
stock $2,206,867 $2,779,153 ($24,1
Shares
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding 11,325,626 10,716,179 10,5
Common stock equivalents 354,186 180,126
Total 11,679,811 10,896,305 10,5
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $.19 $.26
Basic
Net income (loss) applicable to common
stock $2,206,867 $2,779,153 (%241
Shares
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding 11,325,626 10,716,179 10,5
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $.19 $.26




EXHIBIT 21
SUBSIDIARIES

Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc. Catarinct,
Programming Alternatives of Minnesota, Inc. RCMTldeare, Inc.
RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated February 18, 28t mpanying the consolidated financial statemamtsschedules included in the Annual
Report of RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiarie$-orm 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2005h@feby consent to the incorporation
by reference of said report in the Registratiorieédteents of RCM Technologies, Inc. on Forms S-8&(Rib. 33-61306, effective April 21,
1993, File No. 33-80590, effective June 22, 199, [Ro. 333-52206, effective December 19, 2000 Rifel No. 333-52480, effective
December 21, 2000).

/sl Grant Thornton LLP

G ant Thornton LLP

Phi | adel phi a, Pennsyl vani a
Febraury 18, 2005



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRCM Technologies, Inc. (the "registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procsdaoiee designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(c) disclosed in this annual report any changéénregistrant's internal control over financialagjmg that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imei control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitiethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weesses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmiifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2005
/sl Leon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chai rman and Chi ef Executive O ficer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Stanton Remer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRCM Technologies, Inc. (the "registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procsdaoiee designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(c) disclosed in this annual report any changéénregistrant's internal control over financialagjmg that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imei control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitiethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weesses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmiifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2005
/'s/ Stanton Rener
St ant on Remer
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Oficer, Treasurer and Secretary



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&€M Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for theayended January 1, 2005 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the "Report"), I, Leon Kopyt, Presid@rChief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0]1 3 adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac384, as amended (15 U.S.C. section
78m(a)); and (2) The information contained in trep®t fairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/sl Leon Kopyt

Leon Kopyt
Chi ef Executive O ficer
March 17, 2005

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdied Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&€M Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for theayended January 1, 2005 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the "Report"), I, Stanton Remer, Chia&incial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, agptetbpursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Gxtewf 2002, to my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384, as amended (15 U.S.C. section
78m(a)); and (2) The information contained in trep®t fairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/sl Stanton Rener

St ant on Remer

Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Oficer
March 17, 2005

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon req



